
Council may add and take action on other items not listed on this agenda 

                          BUCKLEY CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                                                             
                                           February 9, 2016 
                                                                       Multi-Purpose Center, 811 Main Street 

City Council Meeting 
                     Opening 7:00 P.M. 
 
  Call to Order       Next Ordinance #06-16 
  Pledge of Allegiance      Next Resolution #16-03 
  Roll Call of Council Members     Next Agenda Bill #AB16-018 
   

A. Citizen Participation 
 

Peggie Venemon – Pierce County Reads 2-16 
Diane & Dennis Wink – Haunted House Annual Report 

 
Time Limit of Three Minutes (Must sign up at City Hall by Wednesday prior to the Council Meeting) 

   
B. Staff Reports 

 
 

C. Main Agenda 
 

1. Public Hearing:  Vacation of a Portion of 112th St. E 
2. RES No. 16-__: Declaring and Disposing of Surplus Property (PD-2007-Dodge Charger) 
3. Agreement:  Annual SS911 Contract (Police) 
4. Lease Agreement: 2016 - PD Copy Machine 
5. Scope of Work - G&O Bid & CM of North Parking Lot Project 
6. Project Acceptance:  2015 Sidewalk Replacement Project 
7. Interlocal Agreement – Pierce County Flood Control Zone 
8. Consultant Agreement – AHBL SR410 Subarea Plan – Addendum #1 
9. Agreement – On-Call Building Inspection Services 
10. Recreational Services – Organizational Restructuring 

 
D. Consent Agenda 
 

11. A.   Approve Minutes of January 26, 2016 City Council Meeting 
Approve Minutes of February 2, 2016 City Council Study Session 

B. Claims 
C. Transfer Voucher 
D. Payroll 

 
 

E. Committee Reports  
 
12. Mayor’s Report       Johnson 
13. Administration, Finance & Public Safety    Boyle Barrett 
14. Transportation & Utilities      Tremblay 
15. Community Services      Rose 
16. Council Member Comments & Good of the Order 

 



The above meetings will be held in the Multi-Purpose Center located at 811 Main Street unless otherwise noted. 
       Last Revised February 8, 2016 

    CITY OF BUCKLEY  PO BOX 1960  BUCKLEY, WA 98321 
360-829-1921  Fax 360-829-2659  http://www.cityofbuckley.com 

CITY OF BUCKLEY MEETING LIST 
  
 
Feb 8  7:00 PM Planning Commission 
 
Feb 9  7:00 PM City Council 
 
Feb 16  9:30 AM Admin, Finance & Public Safety (City Hall) 
 
Feb 16  7:00 PM Transportation & Utilities (City Hall) 
 
Feb 18  4:00 PM Community Services (MPC) 
 
Feb 22  7:00 PM Planning Commission 
 
Feb 23  7:00 PM City Council 
 
 
Mar 1  9:30 AM Admin, Finance & Public Safety (City Hall) 
 
Mar 1  7:00 PM City Council Study Session 
 
Mar 7  7:00 PM Planning Commission 
 
Mar 8  7:00 PM City Council 
 
Mar 15 9:30 AM Admin, Finance & Public Safety (City Hall) 
 
Mar 15 7:00 PM Transportation & Utilities (City Hall) 
 
Mar 17 4:00 PM Community Services (MPC) 
 
Mar 21 7:00 PM Planning Commission 
 
Mar 22 7:00 PM City Council  



Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 
 1 2 9:30 Admin, Fin 

& Public Safety 
 
7  City Council Study 
Session 

3 4 5 6 

7 8 
 
7  Planning Commis-
sion 

9 
 
7  City Council 

10 11 12 13 

14 15  
 
     PRESIDENT’S       
            DAY 
        HOLIDAY!!! 

16 9:30 Admin, Fin 
& Public Safety 

 
7 Transportation & 
Utilities 

17 
 
  

18 
 
4  Community Ser-
vices 

19 20 

21 22 
 
7  Planning Commis-
sion 

23 
 
7  City Council 

24 25 26 27 

28 29      

February 2016 



Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 
  1 9:30 AM Admin, 

Finance & PS 
 
7  City Council Study 
Session 

2 3 4 5 

6 7 
 
7  Planning Commis-
sion 

8 
 
7  City Council 

9 10 11 12 

13 14 15 9:30 AM Admin, 
Finance & PS 

 
7  Transportation & 
Utilities 

16 17  4 PM Community 
Services 

18 19 

20 21 
 
7  Planning Commis-
sion 

22 
 
7  City Council 

23 24 25 26 

27 
 
 

28 29 30 31   

         MARCH 





 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Buckley 
PO Box 1960 

Buckley, WA  98321 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT:  Agenda Date: February 9, 2016               AB16-018 
 
Public Hearing - Vacation of a 
Portion of 112th St. E  

 Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 
Mayor Pat Johnson  X 
City Administrator – Dave Schmidt X X 
City Attorney – Phil Olbrechts X X 
City Engineer – Dominic Miller   
Building Depart – Mike Deadmond   
Finance Depart  – Sheila Bazzar   

Cost Impact:  N/A Fire Depart – Chief Predmore   
Fund Source:  N/A Parks & Rec Depart – Ellen Boyd   
Timeline:  N/A Planning Depart – Kathy Thompson   
 Police Depart – Chief Arsanto   
  Court – Jessica Cash   
  City Clerk –  Joanne Starr  X 
Attachments: Ordinance  
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: The purpose of the Public Hearing is to solicit public input and comment 
on the City’s proposed vacation of 35,567 square feet of public right-of-way abutting parcels 
#0619091028, #0619048006 and #9540150050 located between 112th Street E. and SR410, Buckley, 
WA 98321. The portions of right-of-way are areas of 112th St E that have been abandoned as part of the 
SR410/SR165/RyanRd/112th E Realignment Project. 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: Trans/Utilities - 2015 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:   None 
RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 

Meeting Date  Action      Vote 
         
         
  
  
 



 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

REGARDING THE VACATION OF PORTIONS OF 112th ST E RIGHT-OF-WAY 
 

 
 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Buckley City Council has scheduled a Public 
Hearing for Tuesday, February 9, 2016, at 7:00 PM, at the Buckley Multipurpose Building, at 811 
Main, Buckley.  The purpose of the Public Hearing is to solicit public input and comment on the 
City’s proposed vacation of 35,567 square feet of public right-of-way abutting parcels 
#0619091028, #0619048006 and #9540150050 located between 112th Street E. and SR410, 
Buckley, WA 98321. The portions of right-of-way are areas of 112th St E that have been 
abandoned as part of the SR410/SR165/RyanRd/112th E Realignment Project. 
 

Each person wishing to speak at this Public Hearing will take the podium, clearly state 
their name and full address for the record, and will be allowed three (3) minutes in which to 
voice their comments and/or concerns on the matter at hand.  Speakers are asked to avoid 
repetitious or irrelevant comments, and personal attacks will not be tolerated.  Questions will 
not be taken at this time.  If you have questions, please contact the City as indicated below, in 
advance of the Public Hearing.        

 
Buckley does not discriminate on the basis of disabilities.  If you need special 

accommodation, please contact City Hall within three business days prior to the Public Hearing 
on (360) 761-7801. 

 
Comments may be presented orally at the Public Hearing or may be submitted in 

writing to the City of Buckley, P. O. Box 1960, Buckley, WA  98321, or by e-mail to:  
city@cityofbuckley.com, prior to 5:00 PM on Monday, February 8, 2016. Questions may be 
answered by contacting City staff at (360) 761-7801. 

 
Dated this 13th day of January, 2016. 
Published:  January 20, 2016 
Posted:        January 13, 2016 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 



 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Buckley 
PO Box 1960 

Buckley, WA  98321 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT:  Agenda Date: February 9, 2016               AB16-019 
 
RES No. 16-__: Declaring and 
Disposing of Surplus Property (PD-
2007-Dodge Charger) 

 Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 
Mayor Pat Johnson  X 
City Administrator – Dave Schmidt X X 
City Attorney (Land) – Phil Olbrechts  X 
City Engineer – Dominic Miller X  
City Clerk – Joanne Starr  X 
Finance Depart  – Sheila Bazzar   

Cost Impact:  N/A Fire Depart – Chief Predmore   
Fund Source:  N/A Parks & Rec Depart – Ellen Boyd   
Timeline:  Immediate Planning Depart – Kathy Thompson  X 
 Police Depart – Chief Arsanto   
  Building Depart – Dean Mundy   
  Muni Court – Jessica Cash   
Attachments: Resolution       
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: Resolution being presented for consideration declares as surplus one (1) used 
2007 Dodge Charger serial No 2B3KA43H57H644745 and authorizes the Mayor and staff to offer the 
vehicle as trade-in to the dealership who submits the overall lowest price on purchase of a new patrol 
vehicle. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: Admin/Fin & Public Safety 2/2/16 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   Motion to Approve RES No. 16 -__ Declaring and 
Disposing of Surplus Property (PD-2007-Dodge Charger). 
 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

         
  
  
         

 



Resolution No 09-___ Page 1 of 1 City of Buckley 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-___ 
 

BUCKLEY, WASHINGTON 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BUCKLEY, PIERCE COUNTY, WASHINGTON DECLARING 
CERTAIN PROPERTY AS SURPLUS AND AUTHORIZING ITS 
SALE. 
 
  

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Buckley intends to declare one (1) used 

2007 Dodge Charger serial No 2B3KA43H57H644745, surplus; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council intends for City Staff to dispose of the surplus vehicle 

through trade-in on a new 2016 Patrol Vehicle through competitive bid; and 

WHEREAS, this City Council intends for City Staff to get three bids from three dealers 

on trade-in value and purchase price; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to authorize the Mayor or her designee to award 

the trade-in on the 2007 Ford Dodge Charge to dealer who has the lowest overall price on the new 

patrol vehicle; 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

BUCKLEY:  
 
The City Council of the City of Buckley, Pierce County, Washington hereby declares that 

one (1) used 2007 Dodge Charger serial No 2B3KA43H57H644745, as surplus to the City’s 
needs and authorizes the Mayor and staff to offer the vehicle as trade-in to the dealership who 
submits the overall lowest price on purchase of a new patrol vehicle. 
 

Introduced, passed and approved this 9th day of February, 2016. 
 

 
 
                                                                                       ________________________________ 

                                                             Pat Johnson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 

 
________________________________ 
Joanne Starr, Deputy City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:                                                                    

 
  City Attorney                                                             POSTED:   



 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Buckley 
PO Box 1960 

Buckley, WA  98321 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT:  Agenda Date:  February 09, 2016               AB16-020 
  
Contract with South Sound 911 for 
Police Dispatching, Warrants, and 
stolen items. 

 Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 
Mayor Pat Johnson  X 
City Administrator – Dave Schmidt  X 
City Attorney – Phil Olbrechts  X 
City Engineer – Dominic Miller   
Building Depart – Mike Deadmond   
Finance Depart  – Sheila Bazzar   

Cost Impact:  N/A Fire Depart – Chief Predmore   
Fund Source:  N/A Parks & Rec Depart – Jennifer Bacon   
Timeline:  N/A Planning Depart – Kathy James   
 Police Depart – Chief Arsanto X        X 
  Court – Jessica Cash   
  City Clerk –  Joanne Starr  X 
Attachments: Contract 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: Law Enforcement Services Agreement between the City of Buckley and 
South Sound 911. This service agreement is for dispatching, warrant entry and warrant removal, stolen 
item and stolen item removal, missing, lost or runaway persons into the State and National computer 
system. 
 
2016 cost for this service is $51,460 for dispatching and $8,340 for warrant service and data entry 
bringing the total to $59,800. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: Admin/Fin & Public Safety 2/2/16 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   MOVE to approve the Law Enforcement Services 
Agreement between the City of Buckley and South Sound 911 for Dispatch 
and warrant services. 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

         
         
  
  
 















 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Buckley 
PO Box 1960 

Buckley, WA  98321 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT:  Agenda Date:  February 09, 2016               AB16-021 
  
Contract Agreement for leasing new 
Canon Image Runner Advance copy 
machine for a period of 48 months 

 Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 
Mayor Pat Johnson  X 
City Administrator – Dave Schmidt  X 
City Attorney – Phil Olbrechts  X 
City Engineer – Dominic Miller   
Building Depart – Mike Deadmond   
Finance Depart  – Sheila Bazzar   

Cost Impact:  N/A Fire Depart – Chief Predmore   
Fund Source:  N/A Parks & Rec Depart – Jennifer Bacon   
Timeline:  N/A Planning Depart – Kathy James   
 Police Depart – Chief Arsanto X X 
  Court – Jessica Cash   
  City Clerk –  Joanne Starr  X 
Attachments: Contract 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: Agreement between the City of Buckley and Pacific Office Automation for 
a 48 month lease on a new Canon Image Runner Advanced C52352 Copy Machine. This lease agreement 
is approved and on the Washington State agreement contract #3091-05214. The cost of this lease is 
$195.25 per month and includes all maintenance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: Admin/Fin & Public Safety 2/2/16 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   MOVE to approve Lease Agreement between the City 
of Buckley Police Department and Pacific Office Automation for a new 
Canon Image Runner Advance copy machine.  

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

         
         
  
  
 







 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Buckley 
PO Box 1960 

Buckley, WA  98321 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT:  Agenda Date: February 9, 2016               AB 16-022 
 
Scope of Work: G&O Design, Bid & 
CM of North Parking Lot Project 

 Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 
Mayor Pat Johnson  X 
City Administrator – Dave Schmidt X X 
City Attorney – Phil Olbrechts  X 
City Engineer – Dominic Miller X X 
Building Depart – Mike Deadmond   
Finance Depart  – Sheila Bazzar   

Cost Impact:   $65,800 Fire Depart – Chief Predmore   
Fund Source:  Various (102, 307, 405) Parks & Rec Depart – Ellen Boyd   
Timeline:  Immediate Planning Depart – Kathy Thompson   
 Police Depart – Chief Arsanto   
  Muni Court – Jessica Cash    
  City Clerk – Joanne Starr  X 
Attachments:  Scope of Work  

 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: As approved in the 2016 Budget, the scope of work being presented 
for consideration relates to completing bid services and construction management of the 
Downtown North Parking Lot Reconstruction Project. The project entails replacing a sewer main 
and then reconstructing the parking lot to include sidewalk, plaza area, curb, gutters, stormwater, 
paving and landscaping. The current engineering estimate for the project is: 

 
• Schedule A, Parking Lot Storm and Overlay: $234,000 
• Schedule B, Sanitary Sewer: $108,000 
• Total: $342,000 
 
C.M. and expenses at $37,080 is 10.8%. 
Design for Sidewalks and Asphalt Overlay: $10,940 / $100,500 = 10.9% 
Design for Sewer Replacement: $13,740 / $108,000 = 12.7% 

 
COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: All – Budget Process 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   MOTION to Approve the Scope of Work to have 
G&O Perform Design, Bidding Services and Construction Management of 
the North Parking Lot Reconstruction Project. 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

         
  
         
  
 

















 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Buckley 
PO Box 1960 

Buckley, WA  98321 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT:  Agenda Date: February 9, 2016               AB16-023 
 
Final Acceptance: 2015 Sidewalk 
Replacement Project 

 Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 
Mayor Pat Johnson  X 
City Administrator – Dave Schmidt  X 
City Attorney – Phil Olbrechts   X 
City Engineer – Dominic Miller X X 
Building Depart – Mike Deadmond   
Finance Depart  – Sheila Bazzar   
Fire Depart – Chief Predmore   
Parks & Rec Depart – Ellen Boyd   

Cost Impact:  N/A Planning Depart – Kathy James   
Fund Source:  N/A Police Depart – Chief Arsanto   
Timeline: N/A  City Clerk – Joanne Starr  X 
  Muni Court – Jessica Cash   
Attachments: None 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: Staff is requesting and recommending that the City Council grant final 
acceptance to the 2015 Sidewalk Repair/Replacement Project. Pursuant to the engineer’s certification 
the project has been constructed in conformity to the approved plans and specifications. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: None 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   MOTION to Approve Final Acceptance of the 2015 
Sidewalk Repair/Replacement Project. 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

         
         
  
  
 





















 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Buckley 
PO Box 1960 

Buckley, WA  98321 
ITEM INFORMATION 

 Agenda Date: February 9, 2016               AB16-024 
SUBJECT: Agreement – ILA 
Between the City and The Pierce 
County Flood Control District for 
Opportunity Fund Projects. 

 Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 
Mayor Pat Johnson X X 
City Administrator – Dave Schmidt X X 
City Attorney – Phil Olbrechts  X 
City Engineer – Dominic Miller   
Building Depart – Mike Deadmond   
Finance Depart  – Sheila Bazzar   
Fire Depart – Chief Predmore   
Parks & Rec Depart – Ellen Boyd   

Cost Impact:  N/A Planning Depart – Kathy Thompson   
Fund Source:  N/A PW Depart - John Dansby   
Timeline: N/A Police Depart – Chief Arsanto   
  City Clerk – Joanne Starr   
  Muni Court – Jessica Cash   
Attachments: ILA 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: See attached. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: None 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:   MOTION to Approve the Interlocal Agreement 
Between the City and the Pierce County Flood Control District for 
Opportunity Fund Projects. 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

         
         
  
  
 



 

440778.2 | 362658 | 0001 -1- 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE PIERCE COUNTY FLOOD CONTROL ZONE DISTRICT AND 

      ____________________  FOR OPPORTUNITY FUND PROJECTS 
 
 

 THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between 
_____________________, a municipal corporation of the State of Washington 
(“Municipality”) and the PIERCE COUNTY FLOOD CONTROL ZONE DISTRICT, 
a quasi-municipal corporation of the State of Washington (“District”) (“Parties” or 
when singular “Party”), and shall be effective upon execution by the Municipality 
and the District. 
 

RECITALS 
 

A. In Ordinance 2011-95s, passed on April 3, 2012, the Pierce County 
Council formed the District, as authorized by Chapter 86.15 RCW. 

B. In Resolution No. 2013-2 (“Resolution”), the District Board of 
Supervisors: 

1. Allocated and set aside ten percent (10%) of the District's 
annual regular property tax revenues as an “Opportunity Fund” for use by Pierce 
County (on behalf of unincorporated Pierce County), cities and towns on 
Opportunity Fund projects; 

2. Established methods for allocation of Opportunity Fund 
revenues and declared the purposes and uses of the Opportunity Fund; 

3. Provided for accrual and roll over of a Municipality’s 
Opportunity Fund allocation; 

4. Authorized the District Administrator to develop rules and 
procedures for administering and carrying out the Opportunity Fund, which 
includes review of proposed Opportunity Fund projects by the District 
Administrator or designee, and review and approval of such projects by the 
Board; and 

5. Approved this form of Agreement between the Parties. 

C. Pursuant to Chapter 39.34 RCW and RCW 86.15.080(11), the 
Parties desire to enter into this Agreement to provide for Opportunity Fund 
projects as authorized by the Board. 



 

440778.2 | 362658 | 0001 -2- 

AGREEMENT 

 In furtherance of the foregoing and in consideration of the following terms 
and conditions, the Parties agree as follows: 

1. Definitions.  In this Agreement, the following terms shall have the following 
meanings. 

1.1 “Board” means the Board of Supervisors of the District. 

1.2 “District Administrator” means the Director of the Pierce County 
Public Works and Utilities Department, or designee. 

1.3 “Municipality” means cities and towns in Pierce County and Pierce 
County. 

1.4 “Opportunity Fund” means the portion of the District’s annual 
regular property tax revenues that has been allocated and set aside by the 
District for use by the Municipalities on Projects, as authorized by Resolution No. 
2013-2, including amendments thereto. 

1.5 “Project” means a specific improvement, study, plan or activity that 
meets the purposes and uses of Resolution No. 2013-2, including amendments 
thereto, and that has been approved by the Board. 

1.6 “Project Rules” means the rules and regulations established by the 
District Administrator for the Opportunity Fund program, including amendments 
thereto. 

2. Term of Agreement—Termination of Agreement--Survival of Agreement. 
This Agreement shall be effective upon execution by both Parties, and shall remain 
in effect until terminated by one or both of the Parties.  Either Party may terminate 
this Agreement by providing written notice of termination to the other Party no less 
than sixty (60) days prior to the effective date of termination.  This Agreement also 
may be terminated upon mutual agreement of the Parties expressed in writing.  
Sections 12 and 13 of this Agreement shall survive any termination of this 
Agreement. 

3. Rules and Regulations; District Administrator.  The Municipality 
acknowledges receipt of and agrees to satisfy and follow the Project Rules. 

4. Project Eligibility.  The Municipality may apply for and seek approval of 
proposed Projects.  The proposed Projects may be a future Project or a pending 
Project, as defined by the Project Rules. 

5. Project Applications.  The Municipality must submit an application for each 
proposed Project to the District Administrator, on a form approved by the District 
Administrator.  The application must be accompanied by plans, drawings, 



 

440778.2 | 362658 | 0001 -3- 

descriptions, studies, reports, schedules, costs, budgets and/or other data and 
information required by the Project Rules or requested by the District 
Administrator. 

6. Multi-Year Projects.  A Project may be implemented over multiple years 
and may be financed by the Municipality’s allocation of the Opportunity Fund in 
the year of Project approval and by the Municipality’s anticipated allocation of the 
Opportunity Fund in future years.  However, District approval of a Project shall 
not be construed as nor constitute a District obligation or commitment to 
authorize a property tax levy or set aside a portion of a property tax levy for the 
Opportunity Fund in calendar years beyond the year in which a Project is 
approved. 

7. Use and Vesting of Opportunity Fund Allocation.  The Municipality shall 
use Opportunity Fund allocations only for expenses related to the Projects.  The 
unexpended portion of the Municipality’s allocation of Opportunity Fund revenues 
in a calendar year shall be rolled over and reserved for use by the Municipality on 
Projects in subsequent calendar years.  The District shall have no obligation to 
set aside or allocate Opportunity Funds in calendar years after the calendar year 
in which the Project is approved.  The Municipality understands and 
acknowledges that the Board has the right and discretion to modify or terminate 
the Opportunity Fund and its program, and will consider this possibility in 
providing for and implementing any Project. 

8. Project Approval—Implementation of Projects.  After approval of a Project, 
the District Administrator shall prepare a written description of the Project, which 
shall be deemed to be an amendment to this Agreement.  The District 
Administrator shall provide a copy of the Project description to the Municipality.  
The Municipality shall implement the Project only as authorized by the Board and 
described in the amendment.  In implementing the Project, the Municipality shall 
comply with all applicable laws, rules and regulations, and shall be responsible 
for obtaining all approvals and permits for the Project. 

9. Distribution of Opportunity Fund Allocations.  After an actual expenditure 
is incurred for a Project, the Municipality shall request distribution of Opportunity 
Fund allocations in a manner and pursuant to a process required by the Project 
Rules.  However, after Board approval of a Project, the Municipality may request 
advance distribution of all or a part of the Opportunity Fund allocation for the 
Project, prior to expenditure of funds on the Project, in accordance with terms 
and conditions in the Project Rules. 

10. Reports—Audits—Records Retention--Inspections.  The Municipality shall 
prepare and file written reports describing the progress on and the status of the 
Project, as required by the Project Rules. The Municipality shall prepare and file 
such other written reports, including but not limited to a final report after Project 
completion, as required by the Project Rules.  The Municipality shall retain all 
records and documents relating to a Project for a minimum of seven (7) years 



 

440778.2 | 362658 | 0001 -4- 

after substantial completion of the Project, unless required by law to be retained 
for a longer period, in which case the longer period shall apply.  Upon reasonable 
notice, the Municipality shall make available to the District Administrator for 
inspection, review and audit all records and documents relating to the Project 
and the expenditure of the Opportunity Fund allocations, as required by Project 
Rules. 

11. Project Ownership and Maintenance.  If the Project involves the 
acquisition, extension, enlargement, or construction of an improvement, the 
Municipality shall take ownership of, and shall be obligated to operate, maintain, 
repair and replace such improvement.  The District shall have no obligation or 
responsibility for the operation, maintenance, repair and replacement of such 
improvement. 

12. Audit Exception Repayments.  The Municipality agrees that it is financially 
responsible for and will repay to the District all indicated amounts following an audit 
exception, which occurs due to the negligent or intentional acts by the Municipality, 
its officers, officials, employees, agents, contractors or volunteers. 

13. Hold Harmless and Indemnification. 

 13.1 To the maximum extent permitted by law, each Party shall defend, 
indemnify and hold harmless the other Party, and all of its officers, officials, 
employees, agents, contractors and volunteers, from any and all claims, injuries, 
damages, losses or suits, including attorney fees, arising out of or resulting from 
any negligent acts, errors, omissions of the indemnifying Party and its officers, 
officials, employees, agents, contractors and volunteers in performing obligations 
under this Agreement or in implementing a Project.  However, if any such injuries 
and damages to persons or property are caused by or result from the concurrent 
negligence of the District or its officers, officials, employees, agents, contractors 
and volunteers, and the Municipality or its officers, officials, employees, agents, 
contractors and volunteers, each Party’s obligation hereunder applies only to the 
extent of the negligence of such Party or its officers, officials, employees, agents, 
contractors or volunteers. 

 13.2 The foregoing indemnity is specifically and expressly intended to 
constitute a waiver of each Party’s immunity under industrial insurance, Title 51 
RCW, as respects the other Party only, and only to the extent necessary to 
provide the indemnified Party with a full and complete indemnity of claims made 
by the indemnitor’s employees.  This waiver has been mutually negotiated by the 
Parties. 

14. Amendment.  This Agreement may be modified by written instrument 
approved by the Municipality’s governing body and the District Board of 
Supervisors and signed by the authorized representatives of the Parties. 



 

440778.2 | 362658 | 0001 -5- 

15. Waiver.  No waiver by either Party of any term or condition of this 
Agreement shall be deemed or construed to be a waiver of any other term or 
condition, nor shall a waiver of any breach be deemed to constitute a waiver of any 
subsequent breach whether of the same or different provision of this Agreement.  
No waiver shall be effective unless made in writing. 

16. No Third Party Rights.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to 
create any rights in or duties to any third party, nor any liability to or standard of 
care with reference to any third party. 

17. Entirety.  This Agreement is the complete expression of the terms hereto 
and any oral representations or understandings not incorporated are excluded.  
This Agreement merges and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations and 
agreements between the Parties relating to the projects and constitutes the entire 
agreement between the Parties. 

18. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be signed in counterparts and, if so 
signed, shall be deemed one integrated document. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, authorized representatives of the parties hereto 
have signed their names in the spaces below: 
 
 
_________________________________ PIERCE COUNTY FLOOD 
  CONTROL ZONE DISTRICT 
 
 
    
Name:  Brian Ziegler 
Title:  District Administrator 
 
Date:  ________________________ Date:   _____________________ 
 
 
Attested to:  Attested to: 
 
 
    
Name:  Cathy Sala 
Title:  Clerk of Board of Supervisors 



 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Buckley 
PO Box 1960 

Buckley, WA  98321 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT:  Agenda Date: February 9, 2016               AB16-025 
 
Consultant Agreement – AHBL for 
Completion of the SR410 Subarea 
Plan – Addendum #1 

 Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 
Mayor Pat Johnson  X 
City Administrator – Dave Schmidt X X 
City Attorney (Land) – Phil Olbrechts  X 
City Engineer – Dominic Miller   
City Clerk – Joanne Starr  X 
Finance Depart  – Sheila Bazzar   

Cost Impact:  Total $7,200 Fire Depart – Chief Predmore   
Fund Source:  Fund 308 Parks & Rec Depart – Ellen Boyd   
Timeline:  Immediate Planning Depart – Kathy Thompson  X 
 Police Depart – Chief Arsanto   
  Building Depart – Mike Deadmond   
  Muni Court – Jessica Cash   
Attachments: Agreement & Memo       
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: See attached Memorandum. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: None 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   Motion to ______________ Addendum #1 to the 
Consultant Agreement with AHBL for Completion of the SR410 Subarea Plan. 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

         
         
  
  

 



 

City of Buckley  
P.O. Box 1960, Buckley WA  98321 
Phone: 360-829-1921 ext 200 
Fax: 360-829-2659                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      

Memo 
 

To:        Mayor & City Council 
 
From:   City Administrator 
 
Date:    February 3, 2016 

RE:       SR410 Subarea Plan - Consultant Addendum 

On March 24, 2015 the City Council approved a consultant scope of work to have AHBL 
complete the SR410 Subarea Master Plan. This was after spending considerable time and 
energy going through an RFP process. The Council approved the entire scope of work for all 
tasks associated with the Plan for a cost not to exceed $47,428. 
 
The tentative schedule for completion of the draft plans and submission of the documents to 
Council for adoption was August, 2015. However, although AHBL has been diligent in their 
efforts the project encountered delays due higher priority work on Comp Plan Elements and 
land use decisions. The initial draft that was submitted to staff for review was returned to 
AHBL with a request to change formatting of the design guidelines when we acknowledged 
that the guidelines should be incorporated into the existing Historical and Highway Design 
Guidelines rather be stand-alone within the plan documents itself. This required AHBL to do 
additional work, which they willing did at no additional expense to the City. 
 
After juggling vacation schedules over the holidays, AHBL and staff finally completed a draft 
version in mid-January, 2016 that was ready to go to the Planning Commission for a final 
review and then hopefully on to the Council for adoption. 
 
On Monday January 25, 2016 AHBL and the City Planner presented the draft plan to the 
Planning Commission where it appears they encountered some issues/concerns from the 
member(s). The concerns/issues forwarded to me by AHBL the following day included the 
following, and I provide a brief response for each concern:  
 
• Safety concerns with the trail being close to SR410 and potential conflicts where 
the trail crosses SR165. Response: the Trail will be located per the approved WSDOT plans for 
the realignment. Because it crosses a State highway the LAG Manual governs and WSDOT will 
not allow it at a different location. 
 

 

 



   

  Page 2 

• Concerns with the South Gateway taking away business from Main Street, 
because the new buildings would be so far away and there would not be much pulling 
people to Main Street. Response: The intent of 13 years of visioning and planning in 
developing the Subarea Plan was to create a connection to the downtown that would act as a 
draw that would support their struggling businesses. No one knows for sure whether or not the 
effort will be successful, but it was the preferred option after a multitude of other ideas were 
considered. To go back to square one is not an option. The City Council has already approved the 
overall concept and has simply asked that it be put into a final form for adoption.  
 
• In general, they liked the plan and the Design Guidelines, but focused on where 
the proposed buildings were shown and the alignment of the trail. Response: See #2 
bullet. 
 
• The Commission would like to send over the Plan and Design Guidelines to the 
Main Street Business Association for their review prior to a public hearing, as they 
anticipate they will have some issues.  Response: See #2 bullet. I fully understand wanting to 
have support from the downtown, but this plan has been circling for years with numerous 
charrettes and public visioning workshops. Because of the length of time that it has taken to 
finalize the draft, many businesses have changed hands and now there are new voices and ideas. 
I’m concerned that allowing this step will only cause further delays. 

 
• The Planning Commission would like to hold a public workshop/open house to 
discuss uses and their location in the subarea on Monday, March 7.  Response: This is 
basically going back through the process again after it has been done more than once and this is 
not work that is considered as part of AHBL’s approved agreement.  

 
Based on the concerns listed above, I requested that AHBL prepare an addendum to 
their approved scope of work to include a cost estimate of what they believe it will take 
to go back and do this extra work. This is being presented to Council for consideration.  
 
The Planning Commission is doing a tremendous job for the City and has worked through a 
variety of significant planning efforts for the City, but in all honesty I must say that both 
AHBL and staff were somewhat surprised by the response over the Subarea Plan considering 
that they had been part of the development of the overall Plan and UW process that included 
presentations along with public meetings and workshops.  
 
It was both AHBL’s and staff’s understanding that the concept and planning portion of the 
Subarea Plan was done and accepted by the Council. All that this effort related to was to 
compile what was already approved and complete a final draft form for adoption and 
implementation rather than go back and redevelop the concept and conclusions that were 
drawn. If this was not the Council’s intent then clarification needs to be given. If our 
understanding was correct then I believe that the Council needs to make it clear to the 
Planning Commission that the planning portion of the Plan is complete and now it simply 
needs to be developed into a final form for adoption, which would include looking at 
formatting, design standards, etc. 
 



   

  Page 3 

 
Based on our understanding of the direction given to us by Council, it is staff’s 
recommendation to “NOT” approve the AHBL agreement addendum for additional work, 
but to have them complete the overall scope of work as previously agreed and have the 
Planning Commission review those areas mentioned above. 
 
If you have any questions, please let me know. Thank you. 
 
Dave 



 Page 1 of 2 

 
    
TO: Dave Schmidt 

City of Buckley 
P.O. Box 1960 
Buckley, WA 98321 

DATE: January 27, 2016 
 PROJECT NO.: 2140783.30 
 PROJECT NAME: City of Buckley – SR410 Subarea Plan 

EMAIL: dschmidt@cityofbuckley.com SUBJECT: Request for Additional Services 
   

 

DESCRIPTION OF WORK: 

The following additional services have been requested: 

1. Based on the direction from the Planning Commission’s meeting on January 25, 2016, revise subarea plan 
and design guidelines to address Commission concerns regarding connection between Main Street and 
development of the subarea plan’s south gateway. 

2. Prepare for and attend one meeting with the Main Street Business Association to discuss the subarea plan 
and design guidelines. 

3. Prepare for and attend one meeting with city staff to review proposed changes to the subarea plan and 
design regulations based on January 25, 2016 meeting with Planning Commission and meeting with Main 
Street Business Association. 

4. Revise subarea plan and design regulations based on meeting with city staff. 

5. Prepare for and attend one meeting with the Planning Commission to review revised subarea plan and 
design regulations. 

6. Prepare for and attend one meeting public hearing for the subarea plan and design regulations with the 
Planning Commission. 

 

 
BILLING SUMMARY: 

 Time and Expense (estimate): $7,200.00 

 Fixed Fee Amount:       
 
 
 
AGREEMENT: 
Client agrees to the scope of additional services and additional costs/fee set forth above.  Further, Client agrees that this Authorization for 
Additional Services is subject to the same terms and conditions as specified in the original Contract/Agreement dated May 26, 2015.  AHBL’s 
receipt of a signed copy of this Authorization for Additional Services shall constitute its notice to proceed with performance. 

Client Purchase Order No:       

Client Name:       

Signature:  Date:       

Printed Name/Title:       



  
 

 

Authorization for Additional Services Page 2 of 2 
 
City of Buckley – SR410 Subarea Plan 

 

AHBL Project Mgr. Signature:  Date: 1/27/16 

AHBL Proj. Mgr. Printed Name: Brad Medrud, Senior Planning Project Manager 
    

 T A C O M A  

2215 North 30th Street, Suite 300 
Tacoma, WA  98403-3350 
253.383.2422 TEL 

 S E A T T L E  

1200 6th Avenue, Suite 1620 
Seattle, WA  98101-3117 
206.267.2425 TEL 

 S P O K A N E  

827 West First Avenue, Suite 301 
Spokane, WA  99201-3912 
509.252.5019 TEL 

 T R I - C I T I E S  

9825 Sandifur Parkway, Suite A 
Pasco, WA 99301-6738 
509.380.5883 TEL 

c: Accounting 
 
BM/bm 
 
Q:\2014\2140783\30_PLN\Proj_Mgmt\20160127_Authorization_for_Additional_Services_2140783.docx 



 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Buckley 
PO Box 1960 

Buckley, WA  98321 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT:  Agenda Date: February 9, 2016               AB 16-026 
 
Prof SVCS Agreement – For On-
Call Building Inspector & Plan 
Review Services 

 Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 
Mayor Pat Johnson  X 
City Administrator – Dave Schmidt X X 
City Attorney – Phil Olbrechts  X 
City Engineer – Dominic Miller   
Building Depart – Mike Deadmond X X 
Finance Depart  – Sheila Bazzar   

Cost Impact:   As needed Fire Depart – Chief Predmore   
Fund Source:  Fund 001 (General) Parks & Rec Depart – Ellen Boyd   
Timeline:  Immediate Planning Depart – Kathy Thompson   
 Police Depart – Chief Arsanto   
  Muni Court – Jessica Cash    
  City Clerk – Joanne Starr  X 
Attachments:  Contract and Exhibit 

 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: Professional services agreement with 4LEAF, Inc. is for on-call 
building inspector and plan review services. This agreement is being requested by the City’s 
Building Official to ensure that a mechanism is in place for someone to provide the City with 
building services in his absence. The City has a similar agreement with Mr. Centen, but he is no 
longer able to provide services.   
 
These services will only be exercised if Mike is absent due to vacation, training or illness and 
will ensure that there is no disruption in service to permit holders. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: Admin/Fin & Public Safety 2/2/16 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   MOTION to Approve the Professional Services 
Agreement Between the City and 4LEAF, Inc. for On-Call Building 
Inspection & Plan Review Services. 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

         
         
  
  



 



      City of Buckley 
      P.O. Box 1960 
      Buckley, WA   98321 
      (360) 761-7801  

 
 

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF BUCKLEY AND 4LEAF, INC. 

 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT, is made this _____ day of February, 2016, by and between the 
City of Buckley (hereinafter referred to as “City”), a Washington Municipal Corporation, and 
4LEAF, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as “Service Provider”), doing business at 1201 Pacific 
Avenue, Ste. 600, Tacoma, WA, 98402. 
 
 WHEREAS, Service Provider is in the business of providing certain services specified 
herein; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City desires to contract with Service Provider for the provision of such 
on-call services as Building Inspection and Plan Check Services, and Service Provider agrees to 
contract with the City for same;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth herein, it is 
agreed by and between the parties as follows: 
 

T E R M S 
 
1. Description of Work.  Service Provider shall perform work as described in Exhibit A, 

Scope of Services, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, 
according to the existing standard of care for such services.  Service Provider shall not 
perform any additional services without the expressed permission of the City. 

 
2. Payment. 
 

A. The City shall pay Service Provider at the hourly rate set forth in Exhibit B, for the 
services described in this Agreement.  

 
B. Service Provider shall submit monthly payment invoices to the City after such services 

have been performed, and the City shall make payment within four (4) weeks after the 
submittal of each approved invoice.  Such invoice shall detail the hours worked, a 
description of the tasks performed, and shall separate all charges for clerical work and 
reimbursable expenses. 

 
C. If the City objects to all or any portion of any invoice, it shall so notify Service Provider 

of the same within five (5) days from the date of receipt and shall pay that portion of the 
invoice not in dispute.  The parties shall immediately make every effort to settle the 
disputed portion. 

 
3. Relationship of Parties.  The parties intend that an independent contractor - client 

relationship will be created by this Agreement.  As Service Provider is customarily 



 

 Page 2 of 5 

 

engaged in an independently established trade which encompasses the specific service 
provided to the City hereunder, no agent, employee, representative or subcontractor of 
Service Provider shall be or shall be deemed to be the employee, agent, representative or 
subcontractor of the City.  None of the benefits provided by the City to its employees, 
including, but not limited to, compensation, insurance and unemployment insurance, are 
available from the City to the Service Provider or his employees, agents, representatives or 
subcontractors.  Service Provider will be solely and entirely responsible for his acts and for 
the acts of Service Provider's agents, employees, representatives and subcontractors during 
the performance of this Agreement.  The City may, during the term of this Agreement, 
engage other independent contractors to perform the same or similar work that Service 
Provider performs hereunder. 

 
4. Services Performed.  City of Buckley On-Call Building Inspection and Plan Check 

Services. 
 
5. Duration of Work.  Service Provider shall perform the work described in Exhibit at the 

City’s request, as needed. 
 
6. Termination. 
 

A. Termination Upon the City's Option.  The City shall have the option to terminate this 
Agreement at any time, for any reason.  Termination shall be effective upon ten (10) 
days written notice to the Service Provider. 

 
B. Rights upon Termination.  In the event of termination, the City shall only be 

responsible to pay for all services satisfactorily performed by Service Provider to the 
effective date of termination, as described in the final invoice to the City.  The City 
Administrator shall make the final determination about what services have been 
satisfactorily performed. 

 
7. Nondiscrimination.  In the hiring of employees for the performance of work under this 

Agreement or any subcontract hereunder, Service Provider, its subcontractors or any person 
acting on behalf of Service Provider shall not, by reason of race, religion, color, sex, 
marital status, national origin or the presence of any sensory, mental, or physical disability, 
discriminate against any person who is qualified and available to perform the work to 
which the employment relates. 

 
8. Indemnification / Hold Harmless.  The Service Provider shall fully protect, defend, 

indemnify and hold the City, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers harmless from 
any and all claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits including attorney fees, arising out of 
or in connection with the performance of this Agreement, except for injuries and damages 
caused by the sole negligence of the City.  The Service Provider’s obligations under this 
section shall specifically include, but are not limited to, responsibility for claims, injuries, 



 

 Page 3 of 5 

 

damages, losses and suits arising out of or in connection with the acts and omissions of 
Service Provider’s employees, contractors, consultants and agents.    

 
 Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine that this Agreement is subject to RCW 

4.24.115, then, in the event of liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to persons 
or damages to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of the 
Service Provider and the City, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers, the Service 
Provider’s liability hereunder shall be only to the extent of the Service Provider’s 
negligence.   

  
It is further specifically and expressly understood that the indemnification provided herein 
constitutes the Service Provider’s waiver of immunity under Industrial Insurance, Title 51 
RCW, solely for the purposes of this indemnification.  This waiver has been mutually 
negotiated by the parties.   

  
The provisions of this section shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

 
9. Entire Agreement.  The written provisions and terms of this Agreement, together with all 

documents attached hereto, shall supersede all prior verbal statements of any officer or 
other representative of the City, and such statements shall not be effective or be construed 
as entering into or forming a part of, or altering in any manner whatsoever, this Agreement. 

 
10 City's Right of Supervision, Limitation of Work Performed by Service Provider.  

Even though Service Provider works as an independent contractor in the performance of his 
duties under this Agreement, the work must meet the approval of the City and be subject to 
the City's general right of inspection and supervision to secure the satisfactory completion 
thereof.  In the performance of work under this Agreement, Service Provider shall comply 
with all federal, state and municipal laws, ordinances, rules and regulations that are 
applicable to Service Provider's business, equipment, and personnel engaged in operations 
covered by this Agreement or accruing out of the performance of such operations. 

 
11 Work Performed at Service Provider's Risk.  Service Provider shall be responsible for 

the safety of its employees, agents and subcontractors in the performance of the work 
hereunder and shall take all protections reasonably necessary for that purpose.  All work 
shall be done at Service Provider's own risk, and Service Provider shall be responsible for 
any loss of or damage to materials, tools, or other articles used or held for use in connection 
with the work. 

 
12. Ownership of Products and Premises Security. 
 

A. All reports, plans, specifications, data maps, and documents produced by the Service 
Provider in the performance of services under this Agreement, whether in draft or 
final form and whether written, computerized, or in other form, shall be the property 
of the City. 



 

 Page 4 of 5 

 

 
B.   While working on the City’s premises, the Service Provider agrees to observe and 

support the City’s rules and policies relating to maintaining physical security of the 
City’s premises. 
 

13. Modification.  No waiver, alteration or modification of any of the provisions of this 
Agreement shall be binding unless in writing and signed by a duly authorized 
representative of the City and Service Provider. 

 
14. Assignment.  Any assignment of this Agreement by Service Provider without the written 

consent of the City shall be void. 
 
15. Written Notice.  All communications regarding this Agreement shall be sent to the parties 

at the addresses listed below, unless notified to the contrary.  Any written notice hereunder 
shall become effective as of the date of mailing by registered or certified mail, and shall be 
deemed sufficiently given if sent to the addressee at the address stated in this Agreement or 
such other address as may be hereafter specified in writing. 

 
16. Non-Waiver of Breach.  The failure of the City to insist upon strict performance of any of 

the covenants and agreements contained herein, or to exercise any option herein conferred 
in one or more instances shall not be construed to be a waiver or relinquishment of said 
covenants, agreements or options, and the same shall be and remain in full force and effect. 

 
17. Resolution of Disputes, Governing Law.  Should any dispute, misunderstanding or 

conflict arise as to the terms and conditions contained in this Agreement, the matter shall 
be referred to the City Administrator, whose decision shall be final.  In the event of any 
litigation arising out of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be reimbursed for its 
reasonable attorney fees from the other party.  This Agreement shall be governed by and 
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Washington. 

 
18. Public Records Disclosure.  Service Provider shall fully cooperate with and assist the City 

with respect to any request for public records received by the City and related to any public 
records generated, produced, created and/or possessed by Service Provider and related to 
the services performed under this Agreement.  Upon written demand by the City, the 
Service Provider shall furnish the City with full and complete copies of any such records 
within five business days.      

 
Service Provider’s failure to timely provide such records upon demand shall be deemed a 
breach of this Agreement.  To the extent that the City incurs any monetary penalties, 
attorneys’ fees, and/or any other expenses as a result of such breach, Service Provider shall 
fully indemnify and hold harmless the City as set forth in Section 8.   

 



 

 Page 5 of 5 

 

For purposes of this section, the term “public records” shall have the same meaning as 
defined by Chapter 42.17 RCW and Chapter 42.56 RCW, as said chapters have been 
construed by Washington courts.    

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the day and year 

above written. 
 
CITY OF BUCKLEY SERVICE PROVIDER 
 
By:   By:   

 City Administrator Title:   

 Taxpayer ID #:   

 
 
CITY CONTACT SERVICE PROVIDER CONTACT 
Mike Deadmond  4LEAF, Inc.  

City of Buckley Ed O’Reilly, CBO  

PO Box 1960, 933 Main St. 1201 Pacific Avenue, Ste. 600  

Buckley, WA  98321 Tacoma, WA 98402  

Phone:  253-293-3929 Phone:  209-401‐7021  
Fax:   360-829-2659 Fax:  253-203-3101  

 
 

ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED   APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
 
By:   By:       
 City Clerk, Joanne Starr           Office of the City Attorney 
 



      City of Buckley 
      P.O. Box 1960 
      Buckley, WA   98321 
      (360) 829-1921 ext. 200 

 

 -1- 

 
EXIBIT A 

 
 
At the request and direction of the City of Buckley, the consultant shall perform the following 
services as required. 

 
1. Inspection Services 
 

Perform all services normally and customarily associated with the inspections of 
buildings under construction, in accordance with approved permits, as directed by the 
City Administrator or his representative. 

 
2.  Compensation 
 

The Consultant shall be compensated for Field Inspections, Review of Building Permits 
or Plan Review at a rate specified in Section 4 of Exhibit B. 

  



      City of Buckley 
      P.O. Box 1960 
      Buckley, WA   98321 
      (360) 829-1921 ext. 200 

 

 -2- 

 
Date:      

Consultant: Bill Centen  

Mailing Address:  __________________________________  

Phone:        

 
Date No. of Hours 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
Total Hours  
Hourly Rate $40.00 
Total This Invoice $ 

   
For City Use Only 

BUDGET SUMMARY 
Total contract amount    $_______________ 

Previous payments    $_______________ 

Current request     $_______________ 

Total requested this contract to date  $_______________ 

Balance remaining    $_______________ 

Note:  If applicable, submit a separate voucher for each program which is funded by your City contract. 
 
Approved for Payment:  _____________________________________ Date:________________ 

City Administrator Signature 



      City of Buckley 
      P.O. Box 1960 
      Buckley, WA   98321 
      (360) 829-1921 ext. 200 

 

 -3- 

 
 

 
TAX IDENTIFICATION NUMBER 

 
In order for you to receive reimbursement from the City of Buckley, we must have either 
a Tax Identification Number or a Social Security Number.  The Internal Revenue Code 
requires a Form 1099 for payments to every person or organization other than a 
corporation for services performed in the course of trade or business.  Further, the law 
requires us to withhold 20% on reportable amounts paid to unincorporated persons who 
have not supplied us with their correct Tax Identification Number or Social Security 
Number. 
 
Please complete the following information request form and return it to the City of 
Buckley before or along the submittal of the first billing voucher. 

 
 
 

 

Please check the appropriate category: 
 
 ___Corporation   ___Partnership 
 ___Government Agency 
 ___Individual/Proprietor  ___Other (please explain) 
 
 
TIN#: _______-_______________ SS#: _______-_______-________ 
 
Print Name:_________________________________________________ 
 
Print Title:__________________________________________________ 
 
Business Name:______________________________________________ 
 
Business Address:____________________________________________ 
 
Business Phone:______________________________________________ 
 
____________________  _____________________________ 
 Date    Authorized Signature (required) 
 



 
QUALIFICATIONS TO PROVIDE  

 
BUILDING INSPECTION  

AND PLAN CHECK SERVICES 
 

FOR THE  
 

CITY OF BUCKLEY 
811 MAIN STREET 

BUCKLEY, WA  98321 
 

ATTN: MIKE DEADMOND, BUILDING OFFICIAL 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
   JANUARY 25, 2016 

   SUBMITTED BY: 



 

 
 
 Engineering  Construction Management  Inspection  Plan Check 

 

1201 Pacific Avenue, Ste. 600         Tacoma, WA 98402       Phone (253) 203-3336      Fax (253) 203-3101    
  

Mike Deadmond                                                    January 25, 2016 
Building Official 
City of Buckley 
811 Main Street 
Buckley, WA 98321 
 
RE:  Qualifications to Provide Building Inspection and Plan Check Services 

 

Dear Mr. Deadmond, 

 

4LEAF,  Inc.  (4LEAF)  is very excited about  the opportunity  to provide Building  Inspection and Plan Check 

Services to the City of Buckley  (City).    4LEAF  was  established  in  1999  and  incorporated  in  2001  by 

experienced Engineers with a focus on providing Plan Review and Building Inspection services to municipal 

building departments with the goal of setting the industry standard for excellent customer service.  Providing 

services for this contract requires reliability, flexibility, and experience.  The professionals at 4LEAF have all 

three; a history of proven performance, a large staff allowing for flexibility, and experienced personnel.  The 

professionals at 4LEAF take the ownership of our projects seriously and we want to be the City’s building 

services support firm of choice.  4LEAF offers all of the key elements for successful projects, and our approach 

is straightforward:  
 

 Provide you with a large pool of highly qualified professionals; 

 Work with you, not through you; 

 Function as an extension of your staff; 

 Flexibility and Availability – we are there when you need us; 

 Understanding agencies, processes and procedures – no learning curve; 

 Ownership, leadership, responsibility – we treat your projects like our projects; we provide 

leadership in representing your best interests; we take responsibility for our staff, and our work; 

 Commitment – we keep our promises and do what we say we will do. 

   

Regardless of the type of personnel you are looking for, 4LEAF has the depth of resources to provide staff on 

short notice.   4LEAF with a  staff of nearly 200 employees has over 100  ICC Combination  Inspectors and 

Building Officials.  In addition, 4LEAF has a team of more than 25 Plan Review Engineers and ICC Certified 

non‐structural, mechanical, electrical, and plumbing staff actively working on‐site for local jurisdictions or 

off‐site at one of 4LEAF’s offices. 

 

Project Manager/Lead  Inspector‐  Ed  O’Reilly,  CBO    Ed  is  currently  project managing  clientele  in  our 

Washington office where he and his staff are serving the Cities of Enumclaw, Tukwila, Algona, Lynwood, and 

the City of Auburn where Ed is preforming building inspections on the Auburn High School Modernization 

and Reconstruction Project and  for  the Green River Community College.   Ed has more  than 40 years of 

construction experience and more than 30 years with municipal building departments.  For over 19 years Ed 

worked  as  the Deputy  Building Official  for  the  City  of  Stockton  and  is  very  experienced with  the  inner 

workings of the building department processes for building inspection, plan review, and counter services.   



  Page 2 
Qualifications to Provide Building Inspections  

and Plan Check Services 

1201 Pacific Avenue, Ste. 600      Tacoma, WA 98402       Phone (253) 203-3336      Fax (253) 203-3101    
  

 

4LEAF looks forward to the opportunity to serve the City of Buckley.  Should you have any questions I may 

be  reached  on  my  office  phone  at:  (925)  462‐5959,  cellular  phone:  (925)  580‐4055,  or  by  email: 

ctole@4leafinc.com.    Ed  may  be  reached  by  cellular  phone  at  (209)  401‐7021,  or  email: 

eoreilly@4leafinc.com. 

 

Sincerely,  

4LEAF, Inc. 

 

 

 

 

Craig Tole          

Director of Development Services 

 



 
 

Table of Contents 
     

 

Section 1.    Experience and Qualifications 

 Resumes 

 

Section 2.    Capacity 

 

 

Section 3.    References 

 

 

Section 4.    Fee Structure 

 

 

4LEAF Inc.’s  
Qualifications 
to Provide  
Building Inspection and 
Plan Check Services 
 
For the 
 
City of Buckley 
 
 



  
 

 

 

   
Qualifications to Provide Building Services for the City of Buckley Page 1 of 3 
Section 1: Experience and Qualifications January 25, 2016 

Section 1: Experience and Qualifications 

4LEAF, Inc. (4LEAF) was established in 1999 and incorporated in 2001 by experienced Engineers with a focus on 
providing Plan Review and Building  Inspection  services  to municipal building departments combined with  the 
goal of  setting  the  industry  standard  for excellent customer  service.   4LEAF has nearly 200 personnel  spread 
throughout California, Washington, and Nevada.  4LEAF is leading building department services provider and has 
a wealth of personnel  ready  to  serve  the City of Buckley.   4LEAF has a proven  track  record of having quality 
personnel  readily  available  to handle  any  staff  augmentation  request.    4LEAF has  the  ability  to perform  the 
scope  of  services  in  accordance with  the  City,  State,  and  Federal  regulations  and wants  to  be  your  building 
services provider of choice.  
 
The 4LEAF Washington office is only a short distance from the City of Buckley. 
 
Corporate Office        Washington Office 
2110 Rheem Drive        1201 Pacific Ave, Suite 600 
Pleasanton, CA   94588        Tacoma, WA  98402   
O: (925) 462‐5959        O: (253) 203‐3366 
F: (925) 462‐5958        F: (253) 203‐3101 
 
Over  the past 14 years, 4LEAF’s  reputation  for  technical excellence and corporate  integrity has allowed us  to 
grow our staff and expand our services into new areas.  We presently have more than 100 certified and licensed 
Inspectors (DSA, OSHPD, & ICC). 
 

Firm Resources 
Title  # of Staff  Title  # of Staff 

ICC Certified Plans Examiners  25+ 
 

ICC Certified Inspectors  100+ 

ICC Certified Building Officials  10 
 

Registered Architects  3 

Registered Engineers (PE, SE, FPE)  22 
 

ICC Permit Technicians  8 

Code Enforcement Staff (PC832)  8 
 

CASp  10 

Inspectors of Record (DSA, OSHPD)  12 
 

QSP/QSD  3 

 
4LEAF has a proven track record of reviewing and inspecting projects of all sizes and complexities including: 
 

City/County‐owned facilities 

Large Campuses 

Stadiums/Arenas 

Commercial Office Parks 

Detention/Criminal Justice Facilities 

Essential Service Facilities 

Laboratories 

Military Projects 

 

Site Work 

Water Front 

Health Care Facilities 

Transportation Facilities 

Commercial Shopping Centers 

High‐Profile Type B Commercial Construction  

Large‐Scale Residential / Master Planned  

Multi‐Family Projects 



    
   
 

 

Qualifications to Provide Building Services for the City of Buckley Page 2 of 3 
Section 1: Experience and Qualifications January 25, 2016 

As an experienced  firm, 4LEAF has approaches  to working with clients  that are very different  from  those you 
might find when working with a large corporation. Our philosophy is to strive to be the best firm providing our 
clients with outstanding customer service and first‐rate plan review and inspection services.  4LEAF has provided 
plan  review  and  inspection  services  for  numerous  projects  including  office  campuses,  parking  garages, 
transportation  facilities,  city‐owned  buildings,  universities,  public  schools,  hospitals,  sports  arenas, 
infrastructure,  essential  service  facilities,  solar  projects,  and  laboratories.    4LEAF  has  also  performed 
thousands of plan reviews on residential properties and tenant improvements. 
 
Having  served more  than  100  jurisdictions,  4LEAF  has  carefully  crafted  solutions  to  just  about  any  type  of 
building and safety activity our clients might likely encounter.  With years of experience behind our services, we 
feel  confident  in  tackling  unique,  as well  as  traditional,  issues  and  challenges.   Our  knowledgeable  staff  are 
certified and registered and many have the dual benefit of having worked in the public sector before joining the 
4LEAF  team.    Because  we  serve  as  an  extension  of  building  departments,  we  believe  we  have  a  distinct 
understanding of client’s day‐to‐day needs, and we have developed methods and systems that work. 
 
4LEAF can provide staff who specialize  in a full‐range of municipal building safety services that are tailored to 
our  client’s  needs  and  requests.  4LEAF  has  the  training  and  experience  to  provide  building  department 
administrative  services  to  jurisdictions  ranging  from  Certified  Building  Official  support  to  Permit  Counter 
services. 
 
4LEAF’s staff has a depth of experience  in working with all types of building structures.   4LEAF has performed 
inspection and plan review services on more than $25 billion dollars  in construction during the past 15 years.  
We have worked with planning and building departments in the construction, rehabilitation, and repair of both 
public and private buildings.   We have worked with design  review and preservation boards  to determine  the 
design  criteria  and  associated  project  requirements  of  building  improvements.    In  addition,  our  staff  have 
performed inspections and plan reviews for public and private building structures for compliance with life‐safety 
and Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) accessibility requirements. 

 
Basic Services Provided by Firm 

Building Department Services          Construction Management and  
Public Works Inspection 

Engineering / Environmental 
Services 

 Jurisdictional Inspectors 
 Residential 

 Commercial 

 DSA Inspectors of Record 
 OSHPD Inspectors of Record 
 ICC Certified Plan Review  
 Leed Accredited Professionals 
 ICC Certified Building Officials 
 Complete Building Department 
Servies 

 In House Plan Review 
 Offsite Plan Review 
 Property Condition Surveys 

 Constructability Reviews 
 Baseline Schedule Review 
 Stakeholder Coordination 
 Submittals & RFI’s Review 

 Performing Claims Analysis 

 Public Works Inspection 

 Construction Monitoring & Reporting 

 Phase I & II Environmental 
Assessments 

 Storm Water Pollution Prevention 

 CERCLA and RCRA Remedial 
Investigation Work Plans 

 NPDES Permitting and Compliance 

 Engineering Cost Estimates 

 Geotechnical Engineering 
 Soil Characterization & Waste 
Profiling 

 Health & Safety Plans 

 
 



    
   
 

 

Qualifications to Provide Building Services for the City of Buckley Page 3 of 3 
Section 1: Experience and Qualifications January 25, 2016 

Overview 
As your consultant, we understand that our role is to advocate for the City of Buckley and represent the City’s 
best interests.  4LEAF’s team will function as an extension of City staff, seamlessly integrating with the personnel 
and practices established by the City while adding the perspective and expertise that only 4LEAF can offer.  Our 
goal, which we have successfully accomplished on previous clients’ projects,  is to have our staff  integrate fully 
with yours and be accepted as an essential part of the City of Buckley. 
   

Improved quality and business practices are integral factors of 4LEAF’s ideals. If we are to be successful, we must 
be able to meet our customers' expectations. If we want to become the City’s inspection firm of choice, we must 
be  able  to  exceed  your  expectations.    To  this  end, we  continuously  evaluate  every  aspect  of  our  business 
practices.   We have no  interest  in doing things “the way we’ve always done them”; we will work with the City 
core staff to continually innovate and improve our services. 
 

Project Manager 
 

Ed O’Reilly, CBO  
Ed  O’Reilly  is  currently managing  clientele  in  4LEAF’s Washington  office  for  such  jurisdictions  as  the  Cities 
Tukwila, Algona, Lynwood, Enumclaw, and Auburn.   
 

Ed  has  more  than  40  years  of  construction  experience  and  more  than  30  years  with  municipal  building 
departments.    Ed worked  for  over  19  years  as  the  Deputy  Building  Official  for  the  City  of  Stockton  and  is 
experienced with the inner workings of the building department processes for building inspection, plan review, 
and counter services. 
 

Ed will be responsible for handling requests made by the City of Buckley.  Ed is available by cell phone and 
email and will respond immediately to requests with a commitment of one hour or less. 
 

Ed’s contact information is: 
(209) 401‐7021– Cell 
(253) 203‐3336 – Office  
(253) 203‐3101– Fax   
eoreilly@4leafinc.com 

 

Experience with Public Agencies 
4LEAF  is the  largest provider of ICC Certified Combination Inspectors.   4LEAF currently supplies more than 100 
ICC Inspectors to municipal clients both on an on‐call basis or permanent assignment.  
 

City / County Inspection On‐Call Clientele 

City of Auburn, WA  City of Pleasanton    City of Sacramento 

City of Enumclaw, WA  City of Livermore    California State Parks 

City of Tukwila, WA  City of Dublin     County of Stanislaus 

City of Algona, WA  City of Concord    County of San Joaquin 

City of Lynwood, WA  City of Walnut Creek    City of Tracy 

City of Los Altos  City of Berkeley    City of Lathrop 

County of Santa Clara  City of Rohnert Park    City of Stockton 

County of San Mateo  Town of Danville    City of Merced 

City of East Palo Alto  County of Alameda    County of Merced 



 

Ed O’Reilly, CBO 

Building Official /Combination Building Inspector 

 
1 of 2 

 

Experience Summary 

Ed has more than 40 years of construction experience and more than 30 

years  with municipal  building  departments.    He  worked  for  over  19 

years  as  the  Deputy  Building  Official  for  the  City  of  Stockton.    Ed  is 

experienced  with  the  inner  workings  of  the  building  department 

processes for building inspection, plan review, and counter services.  Ed 

has  served  the  building  community  by  responsibly  enforcing  the 

building  code  to ensure  all buildings within his  jurisdictional authority 

were safe to the general public.  Ed is now a resident of Washington and 

manages 4LEAF’s Tacoma office.  Currently, Ed is working with the Cities 

of  Auburn,  Twkwila,  Enumclaw,  Lynwood,  Algona,  and  the  City  of 

Bainbridge Island. 

Select Project Experience 
 
City of Auburn, WA 
Building Inspector 
Ed  is serving  the City of Auburn by preforming building  inspections on 

the Auburn High School Modernization and Reconstruction Project.  The 

project  is  a  reconstruction  of  the  original  1950’s  building.  

Reconstruction of the school is being phased so not to disrupt students.  

Last phase of the project is scheduled to be complete in 2016. 

  4LEAF, Inc. 

Building Official and Combination Inspector 

Upon retirement from the City of Stockton, Ed joined 4LEAF in a number 

of  different  capacities  including  interim  Chief  Building  Official, 

Inspection  activities,  and  Project  Management.    Ed  also  provided 

training to many of our employees before managing the Tacoma office. 

City of Stockton, CA 
Deputy Building Official 

As the Deputy Building Official for the City of Stockton for more than 19 

years, Ed was responsible for the direction of the day‐to‐day operations 

and activities of the code enforcement.  He oversaw building inspection, 

zoning  enforcement,  permit  application  processing,  enforcement  of 

Experience 
40+ years 
 
Education 
California State University, 
Stanislaus, B.S. 
San Joaquin Delta College, AA 
Degree 
Supervisor Management Certificate 

College of Technology, Dublin Ireland 
Electrical/Technical Certificate 
      
Memberships 
ICC Western Washington Chapter  
 

Washington Association of Building 
Officials (WABO) 
   

International Code Council (ICC) 
ICC Yosemite Chapter 
                                  
Certifications 
ICC Certified Building Official  
ICC Certified Building Inspector 
ICC Certified Building Inspector UBC 
ICC Certified Plumbing Inspector 
ICC Certified Plumbing Inspector UPC 
ICC Certified Mechanical Inspector 
ICC Certified Mechanical Inspector UMC 
ICC Certified Combination Inspector 
ICC Certified Combination Inspector – 
Uniform Codes 
ICC Accessibility Inspector/Plans 
Examiner 
ICC Certified Professional Code 
Administrator 
IAPMO Certified Mechanical Inspector 
IAPMO Certified Plumbing Inspector 
 
Honors 

Team Member of the Year for City of 
Stockton 1999 

Team Leader of the Year for City of  
Stockton 2001 
 
 
 
 



 

 

2 of 2 

Ed O’Reilly, CBO

property  improvement,  and  use  and  occupancy  codes  and  standards.  

Some of Ed’s responsibilities also included: 

• Participated  in the development and  implementation of division goals, objectives, policies and 

procedures. 

• Supervise, review, and evaluate the work of assigned staff; selected staff and provided training 

and professional development. 

• Monitored assigned activities for performance in accordance of professional codes, regulations, 

and policies. 

• Communicated on a  regular basis within  levels of organizations  from  technical  staff  to upper 

management. 

• Coordinated work efforts and activities with other divisions, agencies, and City departments. 

• Prepared  a  variety  of  periodic  and  special  reports  related  to  the  division’s  activities  and 

functions for management review. 

• Provided technical assistance and advice to other divisions, City staff, and general public. 

• Lead, motivated, and performed resource scheduling for technical staff. 

• Performed  presentations  on  technical,  design,  and  administrative  issues  for  review  by  upper 

management. 

• Deliberated with and  influenced, upper  level management with  suggesting  such as  the use of 

satellite offices for field inspectors 

• Mentor to much of the building community 

 
City of Stockton, CA 

Supervising Electrical Inspector 

Ed was  the Supervising Electrical  Inspector  for  the City of Stockton  for more  than 6 years.   Ed was 

responsible for supervising, monitoring, evaluating, hiring, coordinating, assignments, and training of 

building inspection staff.  In addition, Ed performed the other following duties: 

 Analyzed and  interpreted checked plans and specifications  for compliance  to state and model 

codes. 

 Report preparation. 
 Communication with upper management. 

 Resolved field issues between City inspectors 
 
City of Stockton, CA  

Electrical Inspector                                                                                 

Ed was an electrical inspector for more than 3 years where he was responsible for enforcing electrical 

codes and ordinances, preparing written  reports on building conditions and violations, and advising 

property  owners  and  contractors  on  matters  relevant  to  construction  and  repair  methods  and 

materials.    Ed  was  also  proficient  at  reviewing  plans  and  specifications  for  installation,  repair, 

replacement, and alteration for use in performance of inspections. 



 

James Canada 

Combination Building Inspector 

 
1 of 1 

 

Experience Summary 

James is a certified combination residential inspector with more than 12 

years  of  experience.  In  addition  to  residential  inspections,  his  project 

experience  includes; hotels, apartment complexes, churches,  large box 

stores,  service  stations,  strip malls,  solar  farms,  fast  food  restaurants, 

amusement centers, and medical offices.  
 

James offers effective communication with critical thinking and problem 

solving skills and is committed to excellent customer service.  
 

Select Professional Experience 
   

City of Tukwila  

Combination Inspector 
October 2015 to current 

James  has  been  performing  combination  inspections  as  a  part  of 
4LEAF’s  contract  to  provide  building  inspections  and  plan  check 
services on an as needed/on‐call basis to the City. 
 

Yuma County, Yuma AZ 
Combination Building Inspector     
May 2015 to Oct 2015  
 

Garden  City  Kansas 
Combination Building Inspector 
May 2014 to Nov 2014 
 

Desert Center CA Solar Farm.        
QA Field Inspector             
May 2013 to Nov 2013  
 

Dateland AZ Solar Farm,                
Yuma County Building Inspector              
November 2010 ‐April 2013 

 

Yuma County‐ Yuma AZ                 
Combination Building Inspector  
July 2004 ‐ April 2013 

 
 

Experience 
12+ years 
 
Education 
Chaffee High School -Ontario, 

California 
National Fire Academy- 2009, Fire in 

Built Environment 
 

Certifications 
ICC Certified Building Inspector 
ICC Certified Electrical Inspector 
ICC Certified Plumbing Inspector 
ICC Certified Mechanical Inspector 
ICC Certified Residential 

Combination Inspector  
NFPA 70 E SUB Part S (ARC Flash & 

Confined spaces) 
OSHA 10 
Red Cross Adult First Aid/CPR/AED 
 
 



James Leon 

Building Inspector 

1 of 1

Experience Summary 

James  is a building  inspector with more than 20 years of experience  in 

the  building  and  safety  services  industry.    James  comes  from  a 

contractor background and joined the Stockton Building Department  in 

1988  before  retiring  in  2008.    James  has  maintained  his  continuing 

education units and is currently re‐certifying through ICC. 

Select Experience 

City of Stockton, CA – 1988‐2008 
Combination Building Inspector / Plan Checker 
2006 ‐ 2008 
James  was  brought  in‐house  to  assist  the  building  department  with 
managing  the  counter  process  including  distributing  plans  for  plan 
check,  issuing  residential  building  permits,  assisting  the  public,  and 
processing residential master plans. 

2002 – 2006 
In  addition  to  James  inspection  responsibilities,  he  also  assisted with 
various plan review roles as a Plan Checker 1.  James reviewed plans for 
code  compliance  with  the  current  adopted  building  codes.    James 
regularly  collaborated  with  the  City’s  Structural  Engineers,  conferred 
with  home‐owners,  building  engineers  and  architects,  and 
recommended changes  to meet compliance with applicable codes and 
regulations.  James also reviewed corrections, assigned/calculated fees, 
and approved documentation for projects. 

1990 – 2002 
As  a  Building  Inspector  II,  James  interpreted  and  enforced  codes  and 
regulations of  structural, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, and  zoning.  
James  performed  inspections  on  numerous  residential  single  family 
residences  including  tracks  as  well  as multi‐family  and  commercial  / 
Industrial projects throughout Stockton. 

1988 – 1990 
As  a  Building  Inspector  I,  James  performed  all  phases  of  new  and 
existing  residential,  commercial,  and  industrial  construction  such  as 
complex high‐rises, Kaiser Hospital,  tilt‐ups, masonry, etc.    James also 
managed track home developments to meet inspection procedures. 

General Building Contractor 
1977 ‐ 1986 

Education 

Pacific University, 2001 
Riparian and Equatic Ecosystem 

U.C. Davis, 2001 
Land-Use Courses 

Consumnes Junior College, 2001 
Business Administration 

Modesto Junior College, 2001 
Building Inspector Program 

San Diego Junior College, 1969-74 
Carpentry Apprentice Program 

Certifications 

Building Inspector – 1065757-10 

Permit Technician – 1065757-14 



Greg Shriver, P.E., CASp 

Senior Plan Review Engineer 

1 of 2

Experience Summary 

Greg has more than 30 years of experience  in the performance of plan 

review engineering services.  Greg has served a wealth of municipalities 

throughout  California  and  has  provided  expertise  in  the  California 

Building Code.   Greg has primarily  served a great majority of  the East 

Bay and has served such jurisdictions as the Cities of Dublin, Livermore, 

Pleasanton, Pittsburg, Tiburon, American Canyon, and others.   Greg  is 

also a fixture in the International Code Council East Bay Chapter where 

he  has  held  numerous  positions  including  Past  President.    Greg 

continues  to  serve  the  industry  on  various  code  related  issues  and 

developments to his clients as well as other industry professionals when 

called upon. 

Select Professional Experience 

4LEAF Inc. 

Senior Plan Check Engineer 

2013 ‐ Present 

Greg joined 4LEAF in January of 2013 as our Senior Plan Check Engineer.  

Greg  is  responsible  for  the  management  and  performance  of  plan 

review  for  all  of  4LEAF’s  plan  review  clientele  and  assists  in  the 

development of 4LEAF’s Structural Engineers and Non‐structural review 

staff. 

Interwest Consulting Group 

Engineer / Plans Examiner 

2007‐2012 

Greg served Interwest Consulting Group for nearly six years performing 
plan reviews for Fire‐Life‐Safety, Structural, Accessibility, and Title 24 for 
many municipalities  including  Cities  of  Pleasanton, Dublin,  Livermore, 
Pittsburg, Tiburon, Martinez, etc. 

Independent Code Consultants 

Engineer / Plans Examiner / Owner 

1991‐2007 

Greg was the sole proprietor of his own Consulting Group for more than 

15  years  performing  plan  reviews  for  Fire‐Life‐Safety,  Structural, 

Accessibility, and Title 24. 

Experience 
32+ years 

Education 
B.S.C.E Degree, California State 
University Fresno, May 1981 
Fresno City College, Fresno CA 
AA Degree, May 1973 

Certifications 
Registered California Professional 
Engineer No. 38761 
CASp Certification No. 096 

Registrations 
ICBO 
CALBO 
SEAOC 
California Energy Commission 
Past President – ICC East Bay Chapter 



 

 

2 of 2 

Greg Shriver, P.E., CASp

Project Experience 
 

Oracle Building “H” and Parking Structure 
Occupancy:      B, Type II FR & S‐2 IB 
Size:  532,261 sf 
No. of Stories:   4 
Valuation:    $60,000,000 
Project Description:   Greg provided  the complete shell and  tenant  improvement plan reviews  for  this 
four story building totaling 180,996 sq ft.  Occupancy is B with construction type II FR, fully sprinklered.  
The  structural  systems  consisted  of  conventional  footings,  structural  steel  framing  and  metal 
deck/concrete fill floor and roof diaphragms and special braced frames.  The parking garage consisted of 
complete plan review services for the four story S‐2 building.  The Construction type was I‐B with a total 
square footage of 351,265 sq ft.   Structural systems consisted of conventional footings, post tensioned 
concrete floor slabs, and concrete shearwalls. 

 
Pleasanton Corporate Commons   
Occupancy:      B 
Size:   250,000 sf 
No. of Stories:   5 
Valuation:    $60,000,000 
Project Description:   Greg performed  the plan  review on  the 250,000  sq  ft Corporate Commons  that 
included five stories of structural steel, reinforced concrete, and metal deck floors.  The occupancy is B 
construction and the structural systems consisted of conventional footings, structural steel framing and 
metal deck/concrete fill floor and special braced frames. 

 
6088 / 6100 Sunol Boulevard 
Occupancy:    B‐H, 2‐H, 7, II FR 
Size:  184,233 sf 
No. of Stories:  4 
Valuation:    $55,000,000 
Project Description: Greg provided  the  complete  shell and  tenant  improvement plan  reviews  for  this 
two building project consisting of one‐three story building with basement and one  two‐story building 
totaling  184,233  sq  ft.    Occupancy  is  B/H‐2H‐7  with  construction  type  IIFR,  fully  sprinklered.    The 
structural systems consisted of conventional footings, structural steel, framing and metal deck/concrete 
fill floor and roof diaphragms, and special moment resisting frames. 

 
Pleasanton Presbyterian Church 
Occupancy:    E‐3, B, and A2.1, Construction Type V‐N 
Size:  78,000 sf 
No. of Stories:  1&2 
Valuation:    $15,000,000 
Project Description:   Greg provided plan review for the Pleasanton Presbyterian Church that consisted 
of  a  single  story  multi‐use  building,  a  single  story  classroom  building,  a  single  story  youth  center 
building,  and  a  two  story worship  center.    The  total  square  footage  for  the project  is  approximately 
78,000 sq ft.   The Occupancy  is E3, B and A2.1.   The construction  is type V‐N sprinklered.   The project 
was  constructed  using  conventional  wood  framing,  the  lateral  force  resisting  systems  consisted  of 
plywood roof and floor diaphragms and plywood shear walls. 



Joseph Nicolas, P.E. 

Project Manager 

1 of 2

Experience Summary 

Joe has more  than  27  years of  experience  providing design  and  code 

compliance  services  to  both  the  public  and  private  sectors.  He  has 

managed plan review staffs in excess of 35 plans examiners for both the 

public and private sectors.   He  is also experienced  in reviewing the  life 

safety and structural components of education, healthcare, commercial, 

industrial and residential structures.   

Select Work Experience 

4LEAF, Inc.  

Senior Engineer / Senior Project Manager 

For the past seven years, Joe has been responsible for the management 

of 4LEAF’s plan review operation.  Joe has crafted and managed a team 

of highly successful engineers and MEP staff of more than 20 personnel 

to work with numerous  local  clients  including  the City of Sacramento, 

City  of  Folsom,  City  of  Roseville,  City  of Galt, Aerojet,  and  numerous 

Cities and Counties  throughout  the Central Valley, East Bay Area, and 

South Bay Area.    Joe  has worked  on  and managed  a  number  of  high 

profile projects including: 

‐ Calaveras County Jail ($68 Million) 

‐ Tuolumne County Jail ($30 Million) 

‐ Main Street Cupertino ($300 Million) 

‐ Administrative Office of the Courts ($300 Million) 

Private Consulting Firm, Sacramento, CA 

Director of Plan Review  

Joe  was  responsible  for  supervising  commercial  and  residential  plan 

review  staff  on  various  projects  working  for  developers  and  various 

building  departments.    Among  Joe’s  responsibilities  included 

preparation  and  administration  of  division’s  budget,  consulting  with 

developers,  architects,  and  engineers,  and  communicating  the  life‐

safety & structural building codes. 

Experience 
27 years 

Education 
California Polytechnic State University 
San Luis Obispo, CA –  
B.S. Architectural Design 

Certifications 
California Registered Civil Engineer 
License # 58139 

Professional Affiliations 
ICC – International Code Council 

Structural Engineers of Northern 
California 



2 of 2

Joseph Nicolas, P.E.

Pacific Engineering 
Principal Engineer  
Joe managed his own firm and supervised staff during the production of steel fabrication drawings.  Joe 
was responsible for providing structural engineering calculations to support the fabrication division and 
would  consult  with  developers,  contractors,  architects,  and  engineers.    His  duties  also  included 
estimating the materials necessary and steel fabrication costs.  

City of Sacramento – Development Services Department 
Supervising Engineer  
Joe was responsible for supervising the commercial and residential plan review staff on projects needing 
permits  in  the  City  of  Sacramento.    Joe’s  responsibilities  included  preparation  and  administration  of 
division’s budget,  consulting with  developers,  architects,  and  engineers,  and  communicating  the  life‐
safety building codes.  He also served as a plan reviewer for mid‐rise structural projects, seismic retrofits 
of  existing buildings using  the  State Historic Building Code  and  FEMA documents,  and had  reviewed 
various apartments and mixed use projects for the Life Safety provisions of the California Building Codes. 

County of Sacramento  
Associate Engineer  
Joe provided his expertise in the building design industry providing structural plan review of commercial 
and residential buildings.  These projects included 2 to 3 story apartments, commercial, residential, and 
Sacramento County Construction projects. 

Buehler & Buehler Structural Engineers, Inc. 
Associate Engineer  
Joe provided his structural design experience  for various projects  throughout  the Sacramento Region.  
He has extensive knowledge of the building codes and FEMA documents necessary to design structures.  
His design experience  included  the  retrofitting of unreinforced masonry buildings, education  facilities, 
healthcare  facilities,  commercial  and  residential  facilities  and  parking  structures.    His  experience 
included structures designed of timber, masonry, concrete, steel mid‐rise construction and post tension 
concrete. 

Orland Police Headquarters 
Senior Plans Examiner 
Existing  Historic  Building  in  Orland,  California,  a  92,000  square  foot  public  safety  building,  type  VB 
construction,  fully  sprinklered.      Existing  reinforced  concrete  moment  frame  arches  with  concrete 
shearwalls.   Project was designed using the 2007 Historic Building Code and the 2007 California Building 
Code. 

Seismic Evaluation and Upgrade 
Ruhstaller Building, Sacramento, CA 
Supervising Engineer 
An  early  Historic  4600  square  foot  URM  with  mezzanine  strengthened  to  meet  the  “collapse‐
prevention”  performance  objective  defined  in  FEMA  310.      The  lateral  system  consisted  of  URM 
bearing/shearwalls supported by unreinforced brick and concrete footings. 



Ronald Stevens 

Contract Combination Building Inspector 

1 of 2

Experience Summary 

Ronald has more than 45 years of experience  in the construction 
industry.    In  1985  he  founded  and  managed  a  private  inspection 
company which did condition and evaluation assessments on residential 
and commercial properties.  Ronald first obtained certification from the 
ICBO, currently the ICC in 1991 as a Building, Plumbing and Mechanical 
Inspector and worked as a combination  inspector from 1997‐2007.   He 
then received  additional  training  and  certification  as  a  Code 
Enforcement  Officer  in  2001‐2002 with  the  completion  of  Basic  thru 
Supervisory classes.   Since 2007 Ronald has pursued additional training 
through  the California Building Officials Training  Institute  (CALBO) and 
has achieved  credentials  in  the  following areas; Building Official,  Field 
Inspector,  Design  Professional  and  Code  Enforcement. Most  recently 
Ronald received his Master’s Degree in Public Administration. 

 

Selected Professional Experience 

4LEAF, Inc. 
2013 – Present 
Ronald  recently  joined  4LEAF  in  a  full‐time  capacity  working  with 
various clientele  to perform as‐needed building  inspections.   Thus  far, 
Ron has worked with the City of Dublin for approximately one year on 
various residential projects including multi‐family. 

Precision Inspection Company Inc. Newman, CA 
Senior Building Inspector and Manager of Code Enforcement 
1997‐2007 
In  this  position  Ronald  inspected  new  and  existing  buildings  and 
structures,  executed  the  daily  operations  of Building Department  and 
Code Enforcement in several jurisdictions, and enforced conformance to 
building,  grading  and  zoning  laws.  Ronald  also  wrote,  designed  and 
produced  implementation  plans  to  establish  a  Code  Enforcement 
capability in several jurisdictions.   His other responsibilities included but 
were  not  limited  to  approving  plans,  specifications  and  standards; 
inspecting  residential,  commercial,  industrial  and  other  structures 
during  and  after  construction;  training  and  managing  ten  to  twelve 
inspectors  and  Code  Enforcement  personnel;  ensuring  footings,  floor 
framing,  completed  framing,  chimneys and  stairways met  safety  laws, 
specifications  and  standards;  trained  building  inspection  and 
administrative staff in field inspection and office procedures; observed  

Experience 
45 years 

Education 
Master’s in Public Administration  
 DeVry University, Keller School of    
 Management State of Illinois 

Bachelor of Arts in Political Science 
 California State University Stanislaus  
 Turlock, California 

Associate in Arts, Business Major 
 San Joaquin Delta College Stockton, 

Certifications 
ICC Building Inspector 

ICC Mechanical Inspector 
ICC Mechanical Inspector (UBC) 
ICC Plumbing Inspector 
ICC Plumbing Inspector (UPC) 
ICC Commercial Building Inspector 
ICC Commercial Mechanical Inspector 
ICC Commercial Plumbing Inspector 
ICC Residential Building Inspector 
ICC Residential Mechanical Inspector 
ICC Residential Plumbing Inspector 

CACEO Basic, Intermediate, Advanced &   
 Supervisory Code Enforcement Official. 

Affiliations  
 ICC 
 CALBO 
 SCACEO 
 CACEO 
 CASE 
 PMI 



2 of 2

Ronald Stevens

conditions and  issued notices  for corrections  to persons  responsible  for conformance; supervised and 
managed  inspection  and  enforcement  staff  for  a  building  inspection  firm;  obtained  evidence  and 
prepared  report  concerning  violations which had not been  corrected;  Interpreted  legal  requirements 
and  recommended  compliance  procedures  to  contractors,  craftsman  and  owners,  kept  inspection 
records and prepared  reports  for use by administrative and  judicial authorities; conducted  surveys of 
existing  buildings  to  determine  lack  of  prescribed  maintenance,  housing  violations  and  hazardous 
conditions; and reviewed requests and issued building permits. 

Stevens Custom Builders Ketchikan, Alaska  
Owner, Manager, Foreman 
1983‐1990 

Louisiana Pacific Corp. Ketchikan, Alaska  
Journeyman Carpenter  
1978‐1983  

Stevens Construction Ketchikan, Alaska 
Owner, Manager, Foreman 
1976‐1978 



Francisco Rivera 

Sr. Building Inspector 

1 of 1

Experience Summary 

  Francisco  is a certified Combination Building  Inspector with more  than 
20  years  of  practical  field  experience  working  in  jurisdictional 
environments.   

Select Professional Experience 

4LEAF, Inc. 

Building Inspector 

2014 – Present 

Francisco has worked as an as needed building  inspector on behalf of 

4LEAF with such cities as the Walnut Creek and other jurisdictions in the 

East  Bay  performing  commercial  and  residential  assignments  for 

building, electrical, mechanical, and plumbing inspections. 

City of Brentwood 

Sr. Building Inspector 

1994 ‐ 2013 

Francisco worked in Brentwood for nearly 20 years where he performed 

a full range of advanced  level duties  including field  inspection and plan 

review.    Francisco  lead  more  complex  and  difficult  work  of  staff 

members  in  the building  inspection  section  for  commercial,  industrial, 

residential, and multi‐family structures at various stages of construction 

for compliance with applicable state and local codes, including disabled 

access and green code provisions.  Francisco also regularly met with City 

staff and officials and members of the public as a technical advisor and 

would  routinely meet  with  developers  to  resolve  difficult  situations.  

Some of Francisco’s project inspection work included:   

 The Streets of Brentwood – Regional Shopping Center

 City Hall, Community Center, and Parking Structure

 Transfer Station

 John Muir Medical Office Building

Experience 
20+ years 

Education 
Butte Community College 
  Building inspection Technology Cert. 

Certifications 
ICC Combination Building Inspector 



Saeed “Sid” Danandeh, P.E., CBO, CASp 

Plans Review Engineer 

1 of 2

Experience Summary 

Sid is an experienced plan review engineer and manager with more than 
28  years  of  experience  performing  plan  review.    Sid  has managed  an 
entire  plan  review  operation  for  a  large  private  firm  which  included 
clientele  in Northern  and  Southern  California.    Sid  has worked  on  all 
projects  from  small  residential  to high  rises.    Sid’s project  experience 
includes commercial and  industrial projects such as stadiums, airports, 
vessels, and malls. 

Select Professional Experience 

4LEAF, Inc. 
City of Palo Alto 

2013 – Present 

Sid  is  currently  serving  the  City  of  Palo  Alto  on  behalf  of  4LEAF 
performing  structural  and  non‐structural  reviews  for  such  projects  as 
office  campuses,  tech  buildings,  OSHPD  3  projects,  and  other 
commercial  assignments.   Projects  typically  range  from  approximately 
$10 million to $100 million in construction valuation.   Sid reviews work 
for  structural, mechanical, plumbing,  electrical, disabled  access,  green 
codes based on the 2010 an 2013 CBC, CGBC, CPC, CEC, CMC, and other 
ordinances identified by the City. 

West Coast Code Consultants (WC3) 
City of San Jose 

2013  
For approximately three weeks, Sid performed various reviews for the 
City of San Jose before joining 4LEAF. 

Bureau Veritas 
Plan Review Manager 

2011 – 2012 

Sid  is the Project Manager for Bureau Veritas’ Plan Review Engineering 
Department.    Sid  is  responsible  for managing  work  in  Northern  and 
Southern California which  includes  large commercial buildings, casinos, 
medical  buildings,  and  educational  buildings.    Sid  reviews  work  for 
structural,  mechanical,  plumbing,  electrical,  disabled  access,  green 
codes based on the 2010 CBC, CGBC, CPC, CEC, CMC, and 2008 Energy 
Code. 

Education 
BS Civil Engineering 

Registrations 
CA Registered Civil Engineer 
SECB Structural Engineers 
Certification Board, Chicago IL 
OR Registered Structural Engineer 

Certifications 
ICC Certified Building Official 
ICC Certified Plans Examiner 
CASp Certified Access Specialist 



2 of 2

Sid Danandeh, P.E.,CBO, CASp

Cities of Long Beach, Ontario, Lancaster, and Palmdale, CA 

Plan Review Engineer 

1985‐2011 

Sid  has  worked  for  numerous  municipalities  in  Southern  California 
performing  plan  review  engineering  services.    Sid  has  worked  on  a 
plethora  of  projects  including  high  rise  buildings,  high  occupancy 
structures, malls,  restaurants,  industrial, and  large  residential projects. 
In addition, Sid has plan checked more than 50,000 tract homes for such 
companies as KB, Forecast, U.S. homes, Beazer, and others.  Sid has also 
checked  such  hospitality  projects  as  Hilton, Marriot,  Embassy  Suites, 
etc.  Some of Sid’s largest projects include: 

 Queen Marry

 Spruce Goose Dome

 Boeing Plant (Long Beach, CA)

 Ontario Airport ($300 Million)

 10 Story Edison Building (Long Beach, CA)

 Lancaster Baseball Stadium



Abigail Obligacion 

Plans Examiner/Project Manager 

1 of 2

Experience Summary 

Abigail  (Abby)  has  more  than  seven  years  of  experience  in  the 

performance of plans examination,  counter  support,  and building  and 

safety services consulting.   Abby has served a wealth of municipalities 

throughout  Northern  California  and  has  provided  expertise  in  the 

California  Building  Code.    Abby  has  recently  primarily  served  a  great 

majority of the East Bay with Plan Review services.  Some of these cities 

include the City of Walnut Creek, City of Concord, City of Fremont, City 

of Gilroy, and City of Cupertino.  Abby is also a fixture in numerous local 

chapters and meets regularly with the  ICC Certified Permit Technicians 

Group in the East Bay.   

Select Professional Experience 

4LEAF, Inc. 

Plans Examiner 

2013 ‐ Present 

Abby recently joined 4LEAF in April of 2013 as Plans Examiner in our Pleasanton office.  Abby is tasked 

with the management and performance of plan review for all of 4LEAF’s plan review clientele and will 

assist  in  the  development  of  4LEAF’s  Structural  Engineers  and  Non‐structural  review  staff.    Abby’s 

current  project  management  assignments  include  the  City  of  Cupertino,  City  of  Fremont,  City  of 

Concord, City of Walnut Creek, and  the Town of Danville.   Abby regularly provides on‐site assistance 

and training to existing City staff and on‐site plan review assistance upon request. 

In  addition,  Abby  is  also  plan  reviewing  and  project managing  three  large  reviews  for  the  City  of 

Cupertino, they include: 

 Office Campus Parking Garage (Largest Parking Garage in the United States)

 Main Street Cupertino (~$300 Million mixed‐use facility)

 Cupertino Village

TRB and Associates, Inc. 

Plans Examiner

2010‐2013 

Abby was  responsible  for  the  review  of  plans  and  specifications  to  verify  compliance with  various 

building codes and zoning regulations for several  local  jurisdictions and government agencies ranging 

Experience 
7+ years 

Education 
B.S Civil and Environmental Engineering 
University of California, Davis, 2005 

Certifications 
ICC Building Plans Examiner 
Expires 12/29/2015 

Registrations 
International Code Council 
ICC East Bay Chapter 
ICC Permit Technicians Group 



2 of 2

Abigail Obligacion

from  single  family  dwellings,  new  townhomes,  and  commercial  buildings.   Abby  also  served  as  the 

client  liaison  between  owners,  designers,  contractors,  and  project managers  to  ensure  projects  are 

completed on‐time. 

West Coast Code Consultants (WC3) 

Plans Examiner 

2008‐2010 

Abby  reviewed  a wide  range  of  construction  documents  to  ensure  plans  and  specifications  are  in 

compliance with various building codes and zoning regulations for local municipalities and government 

agencies.   This also  included work with the California Energy Commission and the U.S Department of 

Energy.  

CSG, Consultants, Inc.  

Plans Examiner 

2006‐2008 

Abby  joined CSG Consultants  after  graduating  from  the Engineering program  from  the University of 

California, Davis.  Abby reviewed plans for conformance with the current California Building Codes and 

standards for many clients in the Peninsula and Sacramento area markets. 



Stefanie Hionis, P.E. 

Plans Review Engineer/Civil Engineer 

1 of 1

Experience Summary 

Stefanie is a California registered Civil Engineer with over 9 years of experience 

providing plan review and engineering services on numerous projects.  Stefanie 

is  a  LEED  Accredited  Professional  and  a member  of  the  Structural  Engineers 

Association of Central California Young Members Forum. 

Select Professional Experience 

4LEAF, Inc.  
Plans Examiner 
Stefanie’s responsibilities include reviewing initial and subsequent submittals of 
structural  and  non‐structural  building  plans  for  conformance  of  residential, 
commercial and essential service projects to the California Building Code (CBC) 
applicable at the time of submittal; composing plan check comment  letters for 
projects, and performing independent calculations to verify project calculations.  

 

Board for Professional Engineers and Land Surveyors  
Subject Matter Expert 
Serving as subject matter expert, Stefanie reviewed and approved applications 
for the Civil Professional Engineers Exam, coordinated with Senior Registrars to 
address  unique  applicant  questions  and  applications,  communicated  with 
applicants  and  guided  their  efforts  to  finalize  incomplete  applications,  and 
implemented  process  improvements  in  written  communication  methods  to 
applicants. 

Buehler and Buehler Structural Engineers, Inc.  
Project Engineer 
As  a  project  engineer,  Stefanie  designed  essential  service,  educational, 
commercial  (entertainment,  office  and  retail)  and  multi‐family  residential 
buildings.   She  is experienced with  timber, concrete, CMU and steel  (including 
light gage) construction utilizing the 2001 and 2007 CBC, specialized computer 
programs,  in‐house  design  tools  and  hand  calculations.        She  performed 
construction  administration,  including  addendum  drawings,  RFI’s  /  SSK’s  and 
structural observations.    She  coordinated  structural  support of equipment  for 
Tenant  Improvements  (TI’s),  school  modernizations  and  medical  equipment 
upgrades in hospitals and medical office buildings.  Stefanie analyzed conditions 
and capacities of existing structures for ASCE 31 protocol as member of design 
team, and controlled design schedules by drafting smaller projects in AutoCAD.   
Stefanie mentored  younger  engineers  and  was  a member  of  in‐house  LEED 
committee. 

Experience 
9 years 

Education 

Bachelor of Science in Architectural 
Engineering, 2002 
California Polytechnic State 
University, San Luis Obispo 

Registrations 

State of California Licensed 
Professional Engineer, Civil, #70789 

Certifications 
LEED Accredited Professional 

Professional Affiliations 
California Office of Emergency 
Services, Safety Assessment 
Program, DSW-Volunteer 
Structural Engineers Association of 
Central California, Young Members 
Forum 

Software Proficiency 
AutoCAD (v.97- v.2008), Revit 2009, 
SAP2000, Enercalc, TJBeam, 
RAMSteel, RAM Advanse, Microsoft 
Office Suite 



    
 

 

Qualifications to Provide Building Services for the City of Buckley Page 1 of 6 
Section 2: Capacity  January 25, 2016 

Section 2: Capacity 

Inspection Services Work Plan 
4LEAF maintains  the  largest  database  of  qualified  inspectors  of  varied  qualifications.  Inspectors  vary  from 
current  full‐time  inspection  staff,  idle  staff  (temporarily between  assignments),  and pre‐qualified  staff which 
include  inspectors who  are  available  subject  to  client  demand.      4LEAF’s  inspectors  are  all  ICC  certified  and 
experienced working within a municipal work environment.  4LEAF will provide inspectors with all the necessary 
tools,  equipment,  and  current  code  books  sufficient  to  facilitate  all  required  inspections.  4LEAF  can provide 
interim or full‐time inspectors same‐day or within one business day. 
 

We maintain an on‐call database for as‐needed requests with our clients.  4LEAF utilizes this service for more 
than 75 municipalities.  Below is a snapshot of our database. 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Inspection Options 
Periodic Inspection Services    Available Next Day 
4LEAF can fulfill inspection requests immediately upon request including same day.  4LEAF has a wealth of local 
and available  inspectors  ready  to  serve  the City of Buckley.    In addition, 4LEAF has a proven  track  record of 
providing such services to a number of different building departments. 
 

Part‐Time Inspection Services    Available Next Day 
4LEAF will provide the City with part‐time inspectors upon request.  4LEAF can provide part‐time staff within 24 
hours of request for any duration of time.   4LEAF’s Project Manager will work closely with the department to 
identify the right personnel and determine the appropriate work schedule. 
 

Full‐Time Inspection Services    Available Two Days or Less 
4LEAF  can  provide  full‐time  inspectors  upon  request.    4LEAF  provides  this  service  regularly  to many  clients 
throughout Washington,  and California; Central Coast,  Sacramento Valley, Peninsula/South Bay Regions, East 
Bay, and Central Valley. 
   

Project Specific Inspection Services    Available Two Days or Less 
4LEAF  is often  tasked with providing  inspection  services  to  large projects on behalf of municipalities.   4LEAF 
currently handles  large‐scale projects  for  such  clients  as  the City of Palo Alto, City of Cupertino,  etc.    These 
projects are developer funded into a separate City account which is distributed to 4LEAF using a separate invoice 
and  contract  number.    This  is  particularly  helpful  to  fast  paced  projects  looking  for  continuous  inspection 
services over a short period of time (i.e. 6 – 36 Months). 
 
 



    
 

 

Qualifications to Provide Building Services for the City of Buckley Page 2 of 6 
Section 2: Capacity  January 25, 2016 

Plan Review Services Work Plan 

4LEAF  has  a  team  of more  than  25  Plan  Review  Engineers  and  ICC  Certified  non‐structural, mechanical, 
electrical, and plumbing staff actively working on‐site for local jurisdictions or off‐site at one of 4LEAF’s offices. 
 

On‐Site Review 

4LEAF can supply Registered Professional Engineers to the City of Buckley to work on‐site performing structural 
plan review and non‐structural reviews at the City’s discretion.  4LEAF currently supplies on‐site review to such 
Cities as: 
 
City of Livermore 
City of Pleasanton 
Livermore/Pleasanton Fire Department (LPFD)   
City of Stockton 
City of Gilroy 
           

City of Turlock       
City of Palo Alto 
City of Hollister 
City of East Palo Alto 
San Joaquin County 

Standard Off‐Site Review 

4LEAF  is  able  to  work  effectively  with  design  teams  and  assist  Public Works,  Planning,  Fire,  and  Building 
Departments in the construction, rehabilitation, and repair of both public and private projects.  Our experience 
includes working alongside Design Review and Preservation Boards to determine design criteria and associated 
project requirements, and performing plan reviews of both public and private projects.   This  includes checking 
for  compliance  with  the  structural,  life‐safety,  accessibility,  plumbing, mechanical,  electrical,  fire,  and  local 
codes/ordinances. 
 

Plan Review Approach 

We understand that the specific Building Plan Review responsibilities will include, but are not limited to: 
 

 Examining plans, drawings,  specifications,  computations documents,  soils  reports,  and  any  additional 

  data;  

 Ascertaining whether projects are in accordance with applicable building codes; 

 Checking and processing building plans and inspecting (as needed) to ensure compliance with approved 

  plans and codes; 

 Reviewing plans to ensure conformity to the required strengths, stresses, strains, loads, and stability as 

  per the applicable laws; 

 Reviewing plans  to ensure  conformity with use and occupancy  classification, general building heights 

  and areas; types of construction; fire resistance construction and protection systems; means of egress; 

  accessibility; structural design; soils and foundations; and masonry; 

 Providing additional plan review services as requested by the City; 

 Conducting all plan review at the City Building Department or, as needed, at a site mutually agreed upon 

in writing and;  

 Supplying all plan review staff with all code books and other basic professional references. 
 



    
   
 

Qualifications to Provide Building Services for the City of Buckley Page 3 of 6 
Section 2: Capacity  January 25, 2016 

4LEAF Plan Review QA/QC Process for all Reviews 

Task 1 – Project Tracking Set‐up 

The first step of our process will be to set up the project in our system to enable 4LEAF and the City of Buckley to 
track the progress of the review.  Our plan tracking procedures are designed to track each submittal throughout 
the review process and maintain accurate and comprehensive records for each submittal.   

 
Task 2 ‐ Complete Submittal Review 

Upon receiving the plans  from City of Buckley, 4LEAF will  triage  (preliminary plan review performed by 4LEAF 
plan review project lead) the submittal to verify that the submittal received is complete (i.e., all pertinent plans, 
calculations,  reports, and other  related documents)  in order  that we can begin our  review.      If  the submitted 
package is incomplete, we will communicate with the City of Buckley to discuss the deficient documents needed 
to proceed with our review. 

 
Task 3 ‐ Plan Review Assignment 

After the triage process is performed and a complete package is verified, the project will be assigned to the most 
qualified  Plans  Examiner  and  a  turnaround  time  will  be  established. We  will  log  each  application  into  our 
database the same day the plans are received to assure that they are routed in a timely manner and to allow for 
daily project tracking. 

 
Task 4 ‐ Plan Review 

4LEAF will provide the project contact (Developer, Contractor, Architect, or Engineer) desired by City of Buckley 
with a list of any items needing correction and clarification to comply with applicable building codes, ordinances, 
and regulations. A correction list will be created based on the missing codes and ordinances.  

 
Task 5 ‐ Quality Control 

Prior to submitting the plan review correction list to the City of Buckley, the designated plan review project lead 
will  review  the  correction  list  for  adherence  to  applicable  codes  and ordinances  as well  as  for  accuracy  and 
completeness.  After completion of our quality control review a correction list will be e‐mailed to a designated 
staff member at the City of Buckley. The correction  list and a 4LEAF transmittal form will  include the following 
information: a description of the work, type of construction, occupancy group, square footage, number of floors, 
and sprinkler requirements.  

 
Task 6 ‐ Plan Review Rechecks 

Plans received for rechecks will be reviewed for conformance. Our goal is to actively work with the designers to 
resolve all unresolved issues after our second review. If it appears that there are complicated issues that might 
cause  a project  to  go beyond our  second  review, we will  communicate directly with  the designer  to  resolve 
these concerns. 

 
Task 7 ‐ Project Approval 

Once the final plan reviews are completed and ready for approval, 4LEAF will organize the plans and supporting 
documents per the City of Buckley processing requirements and return them to the City of Buckley, along with 
our letter of completion. 

 



    
   
 

Qualifications to Provide Building Services for the City of Buckley Page 4 of 6 
Section 2: Capacity  January 25, 2016 

Turn‐Around Times 
4LEAF has  a  tremendous  reputation  for  completing projects on‐time  and under budget. 4LEAF’s plan  review 
team  is widely  recognized  for quick  turn‐around  times and prompt  service.   Please contact our  references  to 
learn about our abilities and commitments to our clients.       Off‐site plan reviews are performed at our office, 
with plans  transmitted by personal delivery or overnight service.   The standard  turn‐around  time  is within 10 
business days for residential plan reviews and within 10 days for commercial/industrial plan reviews; however, 
these timeframes are negotiable based on your needs.  4LEAF also provides Fire Plan Review services.   
 

Type of 
Plans 

Transportation Initial 
Review 

Subsequent 
Review 

Expedited 
Service  

 
Residential 

 

<24 Hours (pick up 
& delivery by 

courier) 

 
<10 Days 

 
<5 Days 

No Additional 
Charge 

(when staff 
available) 

 
Commercial 

 

<24 Hours (pick up 
& delivery by 

courier) 

 
<10 Days 

 
<5 Days 

No Additional 
Charge 

(when staff 
available) 

 

Large 
Commercial  

>15,000 Sq. Ft.  

 

<24 Hours (pick up 
& delivery by 

courier) 

 
Negotiable

 
Negotiable 

No Additional 
Charge 

(when staff 
available) 

For more Rural or Remote areas, 4LEAF may solicit a courier service. At no additional cost to the City. 
 
Larger complex plan reviews can be negotiated to achieve the best possible pricing.  4LEAF has a proven track 
record of working with municipalities to provide expedited reviews with special discounted pricing when 
applicable.   
 

Independent Expedited Review 
4LEAF will perform expedite plan review services in two different capacities. 
 

Scenario # 1 – Developer funded expedited reviews – 4LEAF can negotiate an appropriate rate for review 
with the County to ensure all compensation is equitable to the service performed.   
 

 

Scenario # 2 – County requests with no additional funding – Upon request, 4LEAF will perform expedited 
reviews for the County at no additional charge.  4LEAF has a proven track record of assisting our clients 
with expedited  reviews under unique  customer  service  situations when projects need  to be completed 
quickly. 

 

Electronic Plan Review Available 
When  plans  and  documents  are  received  for  review,  4LEAF’s  Plan  Review 
Manager and Document Control Technician analyzes  the project, creates a  Job 
number, and completes a Job Setup Sheet. This form highlights both jurisdiction 
and  project  specific  design  criteria,  and  notes  applicable  contact  information. 
Jobs  are  transmitted  through  4LEAF’s  easily  accessed  EZPlan  Review  portal, 
which  tracks  initial  and  subsequent  reviews,  and  is  open  for  view,  by  the 
customer. The County and their Customers can view 4LEAF’s plan control log through EZPlan Review Portal.  



    
   
 

Qualifications to Provide Building Services for the City of Buckley Page 5 of 6 
Section 2: Capacity  January 25, 2016 

Plans  then  get  distributed  for  review  to  a  4LEAF  team  consisting  of  a  Plan  Review  Engineer  or  architect  (a 
licensed State Professional) and/or an ICC Certified Plans Examiner, as applicable.  Our staff then performs his or 
her  function  of  analyzing  the  plans  and  documentation  for  effective  conformance  to  the  California  Codes, 
referenced construction standards, and County amendments; code  review methodology entails “The Effective 
Use  of  the  CBC”  reinforced  through  proprietary  and  jurisdictional  checklists. When  complete,  the Manager 
overviews the project for quality control purposes, and forwards comments, or approvals, to the pre‐designated 
contacts. 

 
4LEAF’s EZPlan Review 
 

 Structural & Non‐Structural Guidelines and Checklists 
 

 Specialized Spreadsheet  
Web‐Based  
(EZPlan Review) 

 
4LEAF  is a green company and has  the capability  to  receive and  review electronic plans  (pdf  format) utilizing 
Adobe Acrobat Pro. 
 

Structural Only Review 
Upon  request, 4LEAF will perform “structural only”  reviews  for  the County.   4LEAF can communicate directly 
with the designers via email,  in‐person meetings, and through our EZ Plan Review system.   4LEAF prefers PDF 
files  for  “structural only”  reviews which allow  several different Structural Engineers  to  review plans  together 
should  there  be  design  related  questions.    The  majority  of  4LEAF’s  plan  review  engineers  have  a  design 
background and work well with project designers. 
 

On Call Building Department Staff Services 
4LEAF has a proven track record of providing Permit Technician/Counter staff to jurisdictions.  The 4LEAF pool of 
talented  professionals  includes  qualified  and  experienced  permit  technicians  capable  of  providing  all  permit 
processing and counter services.   4LEAF can deploy such staff on short notice and offer  training programs  for 
department staff, if required.   
 

Our  staff  encompasses  the  right  combination  of  experience,  education  and  certifications.    4LEAF  Permit 
Technician  Staff  must  be  experienced  and  dedicated  to  serving  the  public  at  the  Planning  and  Building 
Department counter.  Typical duties include: 

 Accepting Plans for Plan Check 

 Verification that Plans are accurate and complete 

 Calculate Permit Fees 

 Explain ordinances and procedures to owners, contractors, developers, architects, and general public 

 Assist with preparation of permit applications 

 Receive Plans for Planning and Building permits and route to various agencies (if requested) 

 Accept complaints on code violations, process, and record complaints 

 Answer telephone for field and office staff 

 Process inspection requests 

 Maintain files for building permits 

 Operate Building Department’s computerized information system 

 Input variety of information including building permits and inspections 

 Complete related duties and responsibilities as assigned by Building Official and Senior staff members 



    
   
 

Qualifications to Provide Building Services for the City of Buckley Page 6 of 6 
Section 2: Capacity  January 25, 2016 

4LEAF has numerous of Permit/Counter  Technicians on  staff, many whom  are  currently  assigned  to Building 
Departments throughout the state.     All staff will have the materials, resources, tools, and training required to 
perform the job. 
 
Building Department Services Placement Schedule 
 

Building Department Staff  Interim  Full‐Time 

Permit Technician (ICC Certified) 
Less Than 
2 Days 

Less Than 
5 Days 

Assistant Permit Technician/ Counter Staff 
Less Than 
2 Days 

Less Than 
5 Days 

Building Official 
Less Than 
2 Days 

Less Than 
15 Days 

 

Public Works Inspection Services 
In addition to building  inspection, 4LEAF has an experienced staff that provides public works  inspection.   Our 
team has supported numerous projects for on‐call construction management and  inspection services contracts 
for  clients  such  as  the  Sacramento  Regional  Transit  District,  California  State  Parks,  and  numerous  local 
municipalities.    Our many  public  works  projects  include  light‐rail  extension  projects,  water/sewer  systems, 
roadways, and bridges.  Our team of qualified public works inspectors is available should you have needs in this 
area. 
 

 



  
 

 

Qualifications to Provide Building Services for the City of Buckley Page 1 of 1 
Section 3: References  January 25, 2016 

Section 3: References 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Client Name:  City of Auburn 
Client Contact:  Tom Ushing, Building Official 
Client Telephone:  Office:  (253) 804-5036  
Client Address:  25 West Main Street, Auburn, WA  98001 
Email:   Trushing@auburnwa.gov 
Services:  Commercial and Residential Inspection Services 
 
Dates of Service: 2013 - Present 

Client Name:  City of Enumclaw 
Client Contact:  Erika Shook, Community Development Director 
Client Telephone:  Office:  (360) 825-3593 X 5725   
Client Address:  1309 Myrtle Avenue, Enumclaw, WA  98022 
Email:   Eshook@ci.enumclaw.wa.us 
Services: Residential and Commercial Plan Review and Building Inspection. 
 
Dates of Service: 2013 - Present 
 

Client Name:  City of Cupertino   
Client Contact:  Albert Salvador, P.E., C.B.O., Building Official 
Client Telephone:  Office:  (408) 777-3328   
Client Address:  10300 Torre Avenue, Cupertino, CA  95014-3255 
Email:   AlbertS@Cupertino.org 
Services:  Plan Review and Inspection Services 
 
Dates of Service: 2010 - Present 
 

Client Name:  City of Dublin   
Client Contact:  Gregory Shreeve, C.B.O., Chief Building Official 
Client Telephone:  Office:  (925) 833-6620   
Client Address:  100 Civic Plaza, Dublin, CA  94568 
Email:   Gregory.Shreeve@ci.dublin.ca.us 
Services:  Plan Review, Counter Technicians, Code Enforcement, Waste 
   Management, Capital Projects, and Building Inspection Services 
 
Dates of Service: 2002 - Present 



  
 

 

Qualifications to Provide Building Services for the City of Buckley Page 1 of 1 
Section 4: Fee Structure  January 25, 2016 

Section 4: Fee Structure 

Plan Check Percentages: 
 

Plan Check Service  Fee for 1st Review and 
subsequent rechecks 

Hourly rate for subsequent reviews 
(with authorization from Building 

Official): 

Life Health Safety, 
Structural, ADA 

Requirements and Title 24 
Energy Requirements 

Plan Checks 

70% of City fee 
 
 

$110/hour structural 
$75/hour non‐structural 

 
 
Additional Building Department Services 
Senior Combination Building Inspector (Building Inspector III) ................. $85/hour 

Commercial Building Inspector (Building Inspector II)  .............................. $75/hour 

Residential Building Inspector (Building Inspector I) .................................. $65/hour 

Code Enforcement ...................................................................................... $75/hour 

Permit Technician ....................................................................................... $40/hour 

Public Works Inspector ............................................................................... $95/hour 

Chief Building Official  ................................................................................ $110/hour 

Hourly overtime charge per inspector ....................................................... 1.5 x hourly rate  

 
 
Larger  complex  reviews  can be negotiated  to achieve  the best possible pricing.   4LEAF has a proven  track 
record  of working with municipalities  to  provide  expedited  reviews with  special  discounted  pricing when 
applicable. 
 
 
Rates are inclusive of “tools of the trade” such as forms, telephones, and consumables. 
 

 All invoicing will be done monthly 

 Staff Augmentation work (excluding plan review) is subject to 2 hour minimum charges unless stated 

otherwise.  Services billed in 2 hour increments 

 All billable expenses will be charged at cost plus 20% 

 Mileage will be billed at the IRS Rate plus 20% 

 Payment due on receipt.  All payments over 30 days will be assessed a 1.5% interest charge 

 

 
 



 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Buckley 
PO Box 1960 

Buckley, WA  98321 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT:  Agenda Date:  February 9, 2016               AB16-027 
 Parks and Recreation Staffing 
Change Proposal  

 Department/Committee/Individual Created Reviewed 
Mayor Pat Johnson  x 
City Administrator – Dave Schmidt  x 
City Attorney (Land) – Phil Olbrechts   
City Engineer – Dominic Miller   
City Clerk – Joanne Starr   
Finance Depart  – Sheila Bazzar   

Cost Impact:  Approximately (-$22,000) Fire Depart – Chief Predmore   
Fund Source:  General Fund Parks & Rec Depart – Ellen Boyd x  
Timeline:  2016 Planning Depart – Kathy Thompson   
 Police Depart – Chief Arsanto   
  Building Depart – Mike Deadmond   
Attachments:  
(1) Letter to Mayor Johnson and Dave Schmidt with Proposed Staffing Changes 
(2) Youth Services Coordinator Job Description 
(3) Senior Center Activities Assistant Job Description 
(4) Parks and Recreation Organizational Chart with Proposed Changes 

      

 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
 
Attached is a proposal to amend the 2016 staffing levels within the Parks and Recreation Department.   
 
Included in the proposal is a restructuring that includes bringing on two new positions- a Youth Services 
Coordinator and a Senior Activities Assistant.  The job descriptions for these positions are included here 
along with an organizational chart.  
 
 
 
 
 
COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: Community Services Committee  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   MOTION TO APPROVE the Proposed Positions and 
Organizational Restructuring of the Youth & Senior Services Department. 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

         
         
  
  
 





















City Council Minutes – January 26, 2016 
 Page 1 of 3 
 

   
City Council 

January 26, 2016 
 

 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Tremblay called the regularly scheduled meeting to order at 7:00 PM. 
 
Upon roll call the following members were present:  Sundstrom, Rose, Tremblay, 
Leggett, Kyllonen and Burkett.  Council member Boyle Barrett arrived at 7:03 PM. Also 
in attendance were City Administrator Schmidt, Police Chief Arsanto, Assistant Police 
Chief Northam, City Clerk Starr and City Planner Thompson.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Tremblay asked if there were any changes, additions or deletions to the 
agenda.  There were none. Council member Rose moved to approve the agenda.  
Council member Leggett seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
SPECIAL PRESENTATION  
 
Meghan Rhoades from the White River School District conducted a presentation on the 
upcoming bond measure that they would like to see pass, which would provide much 
needed improvements to all schools within the district. 
 
STAFF REPORTS  
 
City Administrator Schmidt stated that the only thing he had to report was that the 
contractors are still working on the transmission main stream crossing bridge. 
 
City Clerk Starr stated that she sent out an electronic version of the agenda and packet to 
all Council members.  She will start sending electronic packets for every meeting, but for 
the time being will provide paper packets as well.  We hope to eventually go all 
electronic.  
 
Police Chief Arsanto stated that he and Assistant Police Chief Northam are working on 
yearly stats for the Council, and they plan on having them out before the next Council 
meeting.  Also, Chief Arsanto has made a conditional offer to an applicant for his tenth 
officer.   
 
MAIN AGENDA 
 
ORD No. 02-16: Amending BMC 3.50 – Parks Impact Fees:  
Council member Sundstrom moved to approve ORD No. 02-16 Amending BMC 
3.50 – Parks Impact Fees.  Council member Boyle Barrett seconded the motion.  
Upon roll call vote, motion carried 7/0. 
   
 



City Council Minutes – January 26, 2016 
 Page 2 of 3 
 

ORD No. 03-16: Amending Miscellaneous Code Sections – HE & BOA Conversions: 
Council member Boyle Barrett moved to approve ORD No. 03-16 Amending 
Miscellaneous Code Sections – HE & BOE Conversions.  Council member Rose 
seconded the motion.  Upon roll call vote, motion carried 7/0. 
 
ORD No. 04-16: Amending Miscellaneous Code Sections – Annual Housecleaning: 
Council member Boyle Barrett moved to Approve ORD No. 04-16 Amending 
Miscellaneous Code Sections – Annual Housecleaning.  Council member Sundstrom 
seconded the motion.  Upon roll call vote, motion carried 7/0.  
 
ORD No. 05-16: Rezoning 25 Acres – Spiketon Rd – Evans:  
Council member Boyle Barrett moved to Approve ORD No. 05-16 – Rezoning 25 
Acres – Spiketon Rd – Evans.  Council member Rose seconded the motion.  Upon 
roll call vote, motion carried 6/1. 
 
Local Agency Agreement Supplement No. 4 – Realignment Project Phase 2:  
Council member Boyle Barrett moved to Approve Grant Funding Local Agency 
Agreement (Supplement #4) and TIB Bid Authorization form for Construction of 
Phase II of the SR410/SR165 Realignment Project.  Council member Rose seconded 
the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
Agreement – AV Capture All Contract – Audio Recording Service:  
Council member Boyle Barrett moved to Authorize the Mayor to Execute the 
Agreement with AV Capture All for Audio Recording Service.  Council member 
Sundstrom seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
Lease Agreement – Addendum #3 City and Ken Carel for AG Facility and Lands: 
Council member Sundstrom moved to Approve Addendum #3 to the Lease 
Agreement Between the City and the Flying K-C Livestock (Ken Carel) for Farm 
Land, Buildings and Facilities on the DSHS Ag Facility.  Council member Boyle 
Barrett seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
Agreement – 2016-2017 Local #286 Contract & MOU:   
Council member Boyle Barrett moved to Approve the 2016-2017 Labor Agreement 
between the City and the Local #286 Operating Engineers for PW and Clerical 
Employees, and the MOU Regarding New Positions and Contracting of Cemetery 
Services.  Council member Rose seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Council Member Boyle Barrett moved to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. 
Council member Rose seconded to motion. Motion carried. 
 

Approve Minutes of January 12, 2016 City Council Meeting. 
 



City Council Minutes – January 26, 2016 
 Page 3 of 3 
 

Claim check numbers 54028 through 54071, in the amount of 
$252,916.36, for the period of January 13, 2016 through January 26, 2016 
are hereby approved and ordered paid this 26th day of January 2016. 

 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
Mayor’s Report:  Mayor Pro Tem Tremblay stated that he has signed up a few Council 
members, as well as the Mayor and himself, for the February 25th General Assembly.  If 
anyone else is interested in attending, be sure to let the Mayor know. 
 
Administration, Finance & Public Safety:  Council member Boyle Barrett stated that 
all topics covered were on the agenda tonight.  Their next meeting will be February 2nd at 
City Hall at 9:30 AM. 
 
Transportation & Utilities:  Council member Tremblay stated that he would like to 
welcome new Council member Burkett onto the committee, and he appreciates the 
knowledge he is going to be bringing.  
 
Community Services: Council member Rose stated that their next meeting will be 
February 18th. 
 
Council Member Comments & Good of the Order:  
Council member Sundstrom stated that the Managing Stormwater in Washington 
conference is on March 9th and he needs permission for himself and maybe Council 
member Burkett to possibly attend.  Council member Boyle Barrett moved to 
authorize expenditure of $195.00 each to authorize Council members Sundstrom 
and Burkett to attend the Engineering Stormwater session for the state.  Council 
member Leggett seconded the motion.  Motion carried.  
 
Council member Boyle Barrett moved to adjourn.  Council member Rose seconded 
the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
With nothing further the meeting was adjourned at 8:26 PM. 
 
 
 
 
Mayor       City Administrator 



City Council Study Session – February 2, 2016 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

STUDY SESSION 
 

February 2, 2016 
 

ATTENDEES:  Councilmembers Sundstrom, Rose, Burkett, Leggett, Tremblay and Boyle 
Barrett.  Also in attendance were Mayor Johnson, City Administrator Schmidt and City Clerk 
Starr. 
  
Mayor Pro Tem Tremblay called the Study Session to order at 7:03 PM.  He opened the Study 
Session expressing his thoughts and ideas regarding how he would like tonight and future 
Study Sessions to run. He would like Council members to be courteous to each other and to stay 
on topic.  He stated that he hopes to adjourn Study Sessions by 8:30 PM. 
 

AGENDA 
 
Soccer Development Waivers:   
 
Mayor Pro Tem Tremblay led a discussion about whether or not the City should consider 
providing waivers to organizations wishing to development recreational facilities on City-
owned property.   
 
Future Topics for Study Sessions: 
 
Council members discussed and developed a list of topics they would like to see on future 
Study Session agendas this year.  Discussion topics included:  Facility Use Analysis, PSE 
Funded Projects, Legislative Agenda, Dangerous Dog Ordinance, Water Status Update, Trail 
Bridge, Hwy 410 & Park Ave. Traffic Issues, Sewer Rates, SR410 Sub Area Plan, and Comp Plan 
Elements. 
 
The Study Session adjourned at 8:26 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 
City Administrator Dave Schmidt   Mayor Pat Johnson 


	Council Packet 2-9-16 Part 1
	Council Agenda 2-9-2016
	CITY OF BUCKLEY MEETING LIST
	Calendar - February 2016
	February 2016

	Calendar - March 2016
	         MARCH

	Citizen Participation - Pierce County Library
	Agenda Bill 16-018 (Public Hearing - Vacation of Portions of 112th St E)
	City Attorney – Phil Olbrechts
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date



	Public Hearing Notice - Portions of 112th E Street Vacation
	Agenda Bill 16-019 (RES No 16-___ - Declaring and Disposing of Surplus Property -PD-2007-Dodge Charger)
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date


	RES No. 16-__ - Declaring and Disposing of Surplus Property (PD-2007-Dodge Charger) att signed
	Agenda Bill 16-020 (Agreement - SS911 Police Contract - 2016)
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date


	2016 South Sound 911 Police contract

	Council Packet 2-9-16 Part 2
	Agenda Bill 16-021 (Lease Agreement - 2016 - PD Copy Machine)
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date


	2016 COPY MACHINE LEASE
	Agenda Bill 16-022 (Scope of Work- GO Design Bid  CM of North Parking Lot Project)
	City Attorney – Phil Olbrechts
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date



	Eng Scope of Work - N Parking Lot Construction (16)
	Agenda Bill 16-023 (Final Acceptance - 2015 Sidewalk Replacement Project)
	City Attorney – Phil Olbrechts 
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date



	Bazzar 2015 Sidewalks Closeout
	Agenda Bill 16-024 (Agreement - ILA Between the City and PC Flood Control District)
	City Attorney – Phil Olbrechts
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date



	ILA - Blank Template
	Agenda Bill 16-025 (Consultant Agreement - AHBL SR410 Subarea Plan - Addendum #1)
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date


	Memo (Mayor  Council) SR410 Subarea Plan - Consultant Addendum
	20160127_Authorization_for_Additional_Services_2140783
	DESCRIPTION OF WORK:
	BILLING SUMMARY:
	AGREEMENT:


	Council Packet 2-9-16 Part 3
	Agenda Bill 16-026 (Agreement for Subsutute Bldg Inspector  Plan Review SVCS- 4LEAF )
	City Attorney – Phil Olbrechts
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date



	Agreement - Prof SVCS - 4LEAF Inc. Substitute Bldg Insp - (Complete to Council)
	Agreement - Prof SVCS -4LEAF, Inc. Substitute Bldg Insp (working)
	BETWEEN THE CITY OF BUCKLEY AND 4LEAF, INC.
	T E R M S


	Agreement - Prof SVCS - 4LEAF, Inc. Substitute Bldg Insp - Exhibit A
	Total This Invoice

	Exhibit B - 4LEAF-BuildingDeptServices-BuckleyWA_2016-0125
	Cover
	2-Page Cover Letter-Washington
	Section 0 -  TOC
	Section 1 - Experience and Qualifications
	WA Resumes
	Section 2 - Capacity
	Section 3 - City References
	Section 4 - Fee Schedule


	Agenda Bill 16-027 (Proposed Staffing Change - Rec  Sen)
	RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION
	Meeting Date


	Attachments for Agenda Bill Titled Parks and Recreation Staffing Change Proposal
	City Council Minutes 01-26-2016
	City Council Minutes 2-2-2016 (Study Session)




